


LET 
EXPERIENCE 
BE YOUR GUIDE.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



01 / TABLE 
OF CONTENTS
01 / TABLE 
OF CONTENTS
01 / TABLE 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7

2



3

02  /  COMPANY BACKGROUND

 About Namibia Asset Management Limited 05

03  /  THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW 

 Funds overview 09
 Financial highlights 10
 Corporate structure 11
 Board of directors 12
 Our purpose, our values and our employees 13
 Chairman’s review 14
 Chief Executive O�cer’s review 16
 Analysis of shareholding 18
 Corporate governance 19

04  /  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Directors’ responsibility statement 28
 Approval of consolidated and separate annual �nancial statements 28
 Independent auditor’s report 30
 Directors’ report 32
 Statements of �nancial position 34
 Statements of comprehensive income 35
 Statements of changes in equity 36
 Statements of cash �ows 38
 Notes to the �nancial statements 39

05  /  NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 20TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 77
06  /  DIRECTORS, AUDITORS AND SECRETARIES 79
07  /  PROXY FORM 80

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7



02 / COMPANY
BACKGROUND
02 / COMPANY
BACKGROUND
02 / COMPANY

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7

4   /   C O M P A N Y  B A C K G R O U N D



ABOUT NAMIBIA ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

NAM was founded in response to a national call for Namibians 
to take leadership in one of the most critical areas of economic 
development, namely the financial services sector. We are 
an asset management company and the only asset manager 
listed on the Namibian Stock Exchange (NSX). NAM currently 
manages funds on behalf of various individual and institutional 
investors of approximately N$20 billion.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Namibia Asset Management (Proprietary) Limited was founded 
in April 1996 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Namibian Harvest 
Investments Limited (NHI) to provide an independent asset 
management service to institutional and retail investors. NHI 
was a broadly diversi�ed �nancial services group that was 
successfully listed on the Namibian Stock Exchange in July 
1998 with assets of N$200 million and no debt. After ten years 
in existence, the NHI Board of directors decided to refocus 
the business on asset management only. �us all the non-core 
businesses have been closed.

With effect from 29 May 2006, NHI’s name was changed to 
Namibia Asset Management Limited to reflect the amended 
structure of the company.

NAM is the largest Namibian-owned asset management company 
with extensive experience in the local, regional and international 
investment arena. It has a reputation for strong, consistent 
investment performance and high service levels.

CORONATION FUND MANAGERS

The Group has enjoyed a strategic business alliance with 
Coronation Fund Managers since 1996.

Coronation embraces Namibianisation by providing investment 
management expertise, on-site training of Namibian investment 
professionals and administrative employees in South Africa, and 
operational support systems to the Group.

Coronation holds a 40.05% shareholding in NAM.

OUR VISION

Our vision is to deliver investment excellence and exceptional 
service to our clients.

OUR STRATEGY

A relentless commitment to the long term is the defining cha-
racteristic of the Group. Our strategy is to remain singularly 
focused on fund management; we do this by applying our 
insight and experience to generate consistent long-term per-
formance across markets for all our clients. This is a key 
competitive advantage in our investment philosophy and is 
deeply embedded in the way we run our business. We operate 
in a highly competitive industry and remain committed to 
delivering on our promise to clients.

We pursue a return objective of generating alpha (market out-
performance on client mandates) for our clients. We are not 
asset gatherers.

In the delivery of long-term investment performance, our com-
mitment to placing clients at the centre of all decision making 
is encapsulated as follows: 

• We strive to always put our clients first. 
• We have an unwavering commitment to the long term. 

NAMIBIA ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (NAM) ,TOGETHER WITH ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND ALL CONTROLLED ENTITIES (‘THE GROUP’),  
IS A PURE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT BUSINESS PROVIDING BOTH INDIVIDUAL AND INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS WITH A PLATFORM TO BUILD FINANCIAL WEALTH.
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• We focus on producing top performance over all meaningful 
periods. 

• We are uncompromising about our ethics.

OUR CULTURE

We are proud of our culture.  As an asset management business 
we believe our people are our greatest asset. We have developed 
a culture of teamwork, performance, excellence, and an en-
trepreneurial flair ; these are ingrained in our DNA. 

We are a meritocracy and believe that active managers require 
a strong culture of performance and excellence. Ownership is a 
very important aspect of our culture; currently our employees 
own 24% of the business either directly or via various structures 
supporting this purpose.

OUR COMMITMENT TO OUR CLIENTS 

We recognise that the sustainability of our business lies in our 
ability to produce superior long-term investment performances, 
to provide client service excellence, to ensure client and staff 
retention and to maintain our licence to operate.

At the heart of our philosophy and behaviour is our commitment 
to clients. We are conscious that the trust placed in us by clients 
is not a given or a right, but that it has been hard earned over 
time, year after year, and can easily be lost.

Our client engagements are underpinned by the following  
com mitments:
• Always put clients first.
• Always act with integrity.
• Be passionate.
• Be open to new ideas.
• Communicate.
• Be excellent.

OUR PEOPLE

The smarter and more diverse we are as a business, the greater 
our competitive advantage. Our aim is to attract the best talent, 
and to build and retain an exceptional team of highly motivated 
and productive people.

Transformation and the creation of sustainable economic em-
powerment of previously disadvantaged and local businesses 
is an integral part of the Group’s strategy. Transformation is 
a business imperative which makes practical business sense, 
the benefits of which extend to clients, partners, shareholders, 
employees and the Namibian economy.

The Group is a voluntary signatory to the Namibia Financial 
Services Charter (NFSC). In line with the spirit of this Charter, 
we are committed to a practical and sustainable process for 
promoting economic growth through Namibianisation and 
empowerment of previously disadvantaged Namibians. We 
have made significant strides in this regard and our people 
have significant direct interest in the Group via direct and 
indirect shareholding structures.

OUR COMMUNITIES 

We have developed a formal Corporate Social Investment (CSI) 
policy. Its overarching objective is to contribute and assist with 
capacity building through the development of skills in the fi-
nancial services industry. This focused approach ensures that 
we make a tangible impact, whether internally or externally. 

Our CSI programme focuses on development assistance pro-
grammes as well as community involvement via direct and indirect 
formal education programmes, such as our bursary programme. 

We provide bursaries to previously disadvantaged learners with 
great academic potential and interpersonal attributes. During 
the course of their studies, students are offered mentorship 
from within the business and vacation work as preparation for 
the working world. Over the past few years we have provided 
full bursaries to 10 students. Five have successfully completed 

their studies and the remainder are enrolled at academic in-
stitutions both locally as well as in South Africa. 

During the current financial year we have spent an amount of 
N$312,340 on the below listed students:

The CSI policy provides clear evaluation guidelines that assist 
the responsible parties to determine which projects to support. 
Authority is granted to management within certain expenditure 
limits, and any amount or cause, which falls outside the policy, 
is referred to the Board for approval.

HOW WE CREATE VALUE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Student Sex Tertiary 
Institution

Year of 
study 
(2017)

Field

Helena Amweenye Female

Namibia 
University of 
Science and 
Technology

Third Year Bachelor of 
Accounting

Benson Dan Male Rhodes 
University Final Year

Postgraduate 
Diploma in 
Accountancy (CTA)

Saara Haimbodi Female University of 
Namibia Final Year

Bachelor of 
Accounting:  
Chartered 
Accountancy

Tjipenandjambi 
Kaijere Female University of 

Namibia Final Year Bachelors of 
Economics

Gerald van Rooi Male University of 
Pretoria Third Year B.Com Investment 

Management

Key stakeholder (s) Key stakeholder (s) needs Business 
objective

Clients Intermediaries

•  Superior long-term investment 
performance

•  Appropriate product o�ering 
aligned with needs

Investment 
performance

Clients Intermediaries

•  Access to information that is 
simple to understand 

•  Open and e�ective channels of 
communication 

•  Accurate, appropriate and timely 
reporting

Client service 
excellence
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THE VALUE WE CREATED FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS 

The Group continues to make a meaningful contribution, com-
mensurate with its size, to its various stakeholders. In respect 
of the N$69.6 million (2016: N$72.4 million) revenue generated 
during the period, N$7.0 million (2016: N$8.3 million) was paid 
to the government in respect of taxes, N$7.6 million (2016: 
N$7.4 million) was paid in salaries and bonuses to employees, 
N$15 million (2016: N$15 million) was paid in dividends to the 
company’s shareholders, and the remainder was reinvested in 
the business.

“ Our commitment to long-term investing 

remains the defining feature of our 

investment philosophy ”

Government
Regulatory bodies 
Clients
Shareholders

•  Compliance with regulations
•  Transparent and proactive 

engagement with regulators and 
policy makers 

•  Employing general good business 
practices and principles

Governance

Employees

•  Recognition and reward for 
excellence 

•  Transformation
•  Open channels for communication
•  Access to continuous learning and 

development
• Ownership culture

Employee 
development 
and retention

Shareholders
Communities

•  Sustainable business model and 
dividends 

• Strong revenue generation 
•  Community development and 

upliftment

Shareholder 
value creation
Social 
investment
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UNDER REVIEW

INVESTMENT MINIMUM
MONTHLY DEBIT ORDER : N$500
LUMP SUM: N$5 000

FEES
INITIAL:  0.00%
ANNUAL MANAGEMENT:  0.85% per annum

INVESTMENT MINIMUM
MONTHLY DEBIT ORDER : N$500
LUMP SUM: N$5 000

FEES
INITIAL:  0.00%
ANNUAL MANAGEMENT:  1.25% per annum

INVESTMENT MINIMUM
MONTHLY DEBIT ORDER : N$500
LUMP SUM: N$5 000

FEES
INITIAL:  0.00%
ANNUAL MANAGEMENT:   0.75% – 2.25% per annum

INVESTMENT MINIMUM
MONTHLY DEBIT ORDER : N$500
LUMP SUM: N$5 000

FEES
INITIAL:  0.00%
ANNUAL MANAGEMENT:  1.25% per annum

INVESTMENT MINIMUM
LUMP SUM: N$10 000

FEES
INITIAL:  0.00%
ANNUAL MANAGEMENT:  0.50% per annum

FUNDS OVERVIEW
NAM CORONATION STRATEGIC INCOME FUND
INVESTOR PROFILE
A widely diversi�ed, actively managed multi-asset fund that aims to provide a higher level of income than a pure income fund 

INVESTOR PROFILE
Investors looking for an intelligent alternative to cash or bank deposits over periods from 6 to 36 months

FUND OBJECTIVE
To deliver returns in excess of the IJG Money Market Index

NAM CORONATION BALANCED DEFENSIVE
INVESTOR PROFILE
The fund aims to maximise long-term returns while minimising short-term risk

INVESTOR PROFILE
Investors seeking a defensive investment solution with a low tolerance for the volatility of returns associated with equity investing 

FUND OBJECTIVE
Our intent is to preserve capital over any 12-month period, while maintaining the ability to produce a medium-term return in excess of 
cash + 3% per annum

NAM CORONATION CAPITAL PLUS
INVESTOR PROFILE
The fund aims to maximise long-term returns while minimising short-term risk

INVESTOR PROFILE
Investors requiring a risk-conscious investment with a reasonable probability of preserving capital in real terms with a low tolerance for the 
volatility of returns associated with equity investing 

FUND OBJECTIVE
Our intent is to preserve capital over any 12-month period, while maintaining the ability to produce a medium-term return in excess of 
in�ation + 4% per annum

NAM CORONATION BALANCED PLUS
INVESTOR PROFILE
A fully managed investment solution diversi�ed across the various asset classes and sectors within the prudential guideline limits

INVESTOR PROFILE
The fund is suitable for investors building up long-term retirement capital and to preserve the purchasing power of their capital over the 
long term, but not prepared to accept the short-term turbulence of the equity market

FUND OBJECTIVE
The fund has a benchmark that aims to outperform the median of the peer group for the fund’s category

NAM CORONATION MONEY MARKET
INVESTOR PROFILE
The fund provides a medium whereby investors can get exposure to diversi�ed money market instruments as de�ned from time to time

INVESTOR PROFILE
The fund is suitable for investors seeking money market returns 

FUND OBJECTIVE
The primary objective of the fund is to obtain as high a level of current income as is consistent with capital preservation and liquidity 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER

GROUP

% INCREASE / 2017 2016
(DECREASE) N$ N$

N$ UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED

Revenue  (3,9)  69,582,765  72,403,774 
Other income  127,8  621,220  272,646 
Net �nance income  0,4  1,572,329  1,565,386 
Pro�t before tax  (6,0)  22,053,215  23,472,604 
Pro�t attributable to ordinary shareholders  (5,2)  14,948,210  15,761,821 

Total assets  (2,3)  45,627,921  46,702,502 
Total equity attributable to ordinary shareholders  5,1  24,382,146  23,198,739 
Assets under management - Actual (0.2) 19,988,095,040  20,022,482,447 

STATISTICS PER ORDINARY SHARES
In cents, where applicable

Basic earnings per share - before tax  (6,0)  14,30  15,22 
Basic earnings per share - after tax  (5,2)  9,69  10,22 
Headline earnings per share  (5,2)  9,69  10,22 
Net asset value  5,1  15,81  15,04 

 18 December 2017  28 November 2016 

Dividend declared - Normal  7,50  7,50 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 9 8
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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1.89%

THE NAM STAFF 
SHARE SCHEME 

21.00%

THE ORBAN
 STREET TRUST

36.39%

PUBLIC AND 
INSTITUTIONS

100%

NAMIBIA UNIT TRUST 
MANAGERS LTD

NAMIBIA ASSET 
MANAGEMENT LTD

40.05%

CORONATION  
INVESTMENT  

MANAGEMENT  
SA (PTY) LTD

0.67%
DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANTON PILLAY  |  BBUSSC, CA (SA), CFA, AMP (HARVARD)

Anton was appointed chief executive officer of Coronation Fund Ma-
nagers in February 2013 and has been a member of its Board since 
June 2009. He joined Coronation in January 2006 from BoE (Pty) Ltd, 
where he held a number of key positions and directorships. Anton has 
extensive knowledge and experience of the investment and banking 
industry. Anton was appointed to the NAM Board in February 2009.

EINO EMVULA  |  BCOM, MCOM

Eino was appointed CEO of Namibia Asset Management (NAM) in 
December 2010. He started his investment career in 2004 as a trainee 
investment analyst with NAM, based at Coronation Fund Managers in 
Cape Town. He has the responsibilities of overall management of the 
business, he is also co-portfolio manager on institutional portfolios 
as well as the group’s unit trust funds with a focus on Namibian asset 
classes. Eino holds a Masters in Financial Management from the 
University of Cape Town and a BCom from the University of Namibia. 
Eino is also a holder of a professional qualification in Investment 
Analysis and Portfolio Management from UNISA.

BIRGIT ROSSOUW  |  CA (NAM), CIA, BPHIL (ETHICS)

Birgit is one of the few internationally Certified Internal Auditors in 
the country. She completed her articles with PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(PwC) in 2001, qualifying as a chartered accountant. She then joined 
Bank Windhoek as Project Manager: Information Technology. In 2002 
she was appointed as Group Financial Manager of NAM. Although 
Birgit left the Group in August 2004 to join Consult Buro (Pty) Ltd 
as a shareholder and director, she continued to provide advice and 

consulting services until she was appointed to the Board of NAM in 
November 2006.

GORDON YOUNG

Gordon was Chief Executive Officer of NAM from 2001 to early 2004. 
He has been a member of the NAM Board for thirteen years and has a 
strong know ledge base of the South African and Na mibian investment 
industry. Before contributing his valuable experience to NAM, he 
was a group strategist with African Harvest. Gordon is currently an 
investment adviser to a South African empowerment company.

AIMEE RHODA  |  BBUSSC, CA (SA)

Aimee, a qualified chartered accountant, joined Coronation Fund 
Managers in 2007 and was appointed financial manager in April 2008. 
Prior to joining Coronation, she was an assistant manager in Deloitte’s 
Special Services Group division. Aimee was appointed to the NAM 
Board in March 2013.

SCHALK WALTERS  |  CA (NAM), CA (SA), CIA

Schalk was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) in Windhoek for 
11 years, where he was the Namibian service line leader for the advisory 
practice until 30 June 2010. His �eld of expertise is corporate governance, 
focusing on enterprise risk management, sustainability and internal 
control processes. Upon his withdrawal as a partner from PwC, he formed 
the consulting practice Fiducia Corporate Governance Solutions, which 
provides a wide range of specialist corporate governance consulting 
services to clients in the private and public sectors. He was appointed 
to the NAM Board in March 2012.

ELIZE ANGULA  |  BPROC

Elize is a partner and legal practitioner at AngulaCo Incorporated. 
She was president of the Law Society of Namibia for the years 2005 
and 2006 and prior to that she served on the council as a member. 
Elize has 14 years’ post-admission experience in civil and commercial 
litigation and practices in the High and Supreme Court of Namibia. 
She also serves as a director on the boards of Foshini Retail Group 
(Pty) Ltd and Frans Indongo Group (Pty) Ltd. She was appointed to 
the NAM Board in March 2012.

ULRICH EISEB (CFO AND COMPANY SECRETARY) 
CA (NAM), CA (SA)

Ulrich was an audit manager at Deloitte prior to joining NAM as CFO 
and Company Secretary. During his time at Deloitte he was responsible 
for entities within the �nance, telecommunications and mining in-
dustries. He is a quali�ed chartered accountant and also holds a level 1 
certi�cation for key individuals issued by the Financial Services Board 
of South Africa. He was appointed to the Board on 01 October 2014.

TARAH SHAANIKA 
BA (ECONOMICS AND MEDIA STUDIES), MIB

Tarah is the former Chief Executive Officer of the Namibia Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry. He holds a Bachelor of Economics and Media 
Studies degree from the University of Namibia. He also holds a Masters 
in International Business (MIB) from the Polytechnic of Namibia. He 
serves on various boards of directors including New Era Publications 
Corporation, NAMZIM Newspapers (Pty) Ltd and Team Namibia. He 
was appointed to the NAM Board on 01 April 2015.

ANTON PILLAY EINO EMVULA BIRGIT ROSSOUW GORDON YOUNG AIMEE RHODA SCHALK WALTERS ELIZE ANGULA ULRICH EISEB TARAH SHAANIKA
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TJIVINGURURA MBUENDE
HEAD OF RETAIL

OUR PURPOSE

OUR VALUES

To guard and grow the wealth  

of the Namibian people entrusted to us.

Always put clients first

Always act with integrity

Be passionate

Be open to new ideas

Communicate

Be excellent

OUR EMPLOYEES

EINO EMVULA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

LEE-MARIE HANEKOM
CLIENT RELATIONSHIP MANAGER

IMMANUEL AMUPADHI
INVESTMENT ANALYST

SOPHELEEN CLAASEN
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTANT

ULRICH EISEB
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
AND COMPANY SECRETARY

SENOBIA CLAASEN
CLIENT RELATIONSHIP MANAGER

SALOME PIETERS
RECEPTIONIST AND PA TO THE CEO

REBEKKA TUUKONDJELE 
CLIENT SERVICE CONSULTANT

JEVIN VRIES*

CLIENT RELATIONSHIP MANAGER
I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

The world is generally in a much better shape. Ten years after 
the global financial crisis, we are seeing a slow and steady 
synchronised recovery. Europe has arguably been the biggest 
surprise this year. We’ve seen consistent growth out of Germany, 
surprising growth out of France and a continued recovery of the 
peripheral countries around the Mediterranean, which were in 
trouble five years ago. And recently, Japan delivered its longest 
growth streak since 2001. Renewed confidence bolstered global 
markets worldwide and for the year the MSCI All Country 
World Index delivered a return of 18.7% (in US dollars). The 
MSCI Emerging Markets Index added 22.5% (in US dollars), 
while the FTSE/JSE All Share Index gained 10.2% (in Rand) and 
the Namibia Overall Index added 14.2% (in Namibia dollars). 

Inflation remains very subdued despite the ongoing global 
printing of money. One of our long-held concerns is the lack 
of inflationary pressure materialising. But that has effectively 
allowed central banks to maintain multi-century low levels of 
interest rates. This has supported growth around the world 
and this wall of liquidity has resulted in most assets sitting at, 
or close to, their all-time highs. 

In South Africa, the political backdrop remains volatile, and 
forecast economic growth outlook is anaemic. The ANC elective 
conference in December 2017 will prove to be a defining moment 
in South Africa’s history. 

Locally, we witnessed a significant slowdown in GDP growth to 
1.1% in 2016, compared to 5.7% in 2015. This was noticed across 
all productive sectors, tied to consistently low mineral prices 
and the impact of regional drought. As a result, government 

spending due to the deteriorating fiscal position was reduced, 
and there was also a notable decrease in private sector credit 
extension during the year. A sharp decline in the Angolan 
tourism trade, Namibia’s top inbound tourist market, due to 
economic challenges in Angola, further negatively impacted 
growth in this key sector.

In the medium term, the World Bank forecasts that the Namibian 
economy is expected to slowly recover. According to forecasts, 
GDP growth may reach 3% by 2017 and about 4% thereafter. 
Near-term recovery is likely to be driven by mining operations 
commencing at the Husab uranium mine. Once fully operational 
it is projected the mine will triple Namibia’s output of uranium. 
Namibia is currently one of the world’s largest producers of 
ura nium and it is of considerable importance to the national 
economy. Further as neighbouring Angola’s economic recovery 
picks up, this too will help drive growth as will post-drought 
agricultural recovery.

PROUDLY NAMIBIAN 

We recognise that the sustainability of our business is anchored 
in our relentless commitment to long-term investing. 

We remain the only asset manager on the Namibian Stock 
Exchange (NSX) since listing in 1998. Not only has our listing 
afforded Namibians the opportunity to become shareholders 
in our business, but it also contributed to developing the local 
capital market. Namibians own 60% of all shares in issue, 24% 
of these are owned by our employees. This is in line with both 
our aspirations as a Board to deepen local ownership and the 

ANTON PILLAY 
CHAIRMAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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key objectives envisaged in the Namibia Equitable Economic 
Framework.

Despite the challenging economic environment, I am pleased 
to report that Namibia Asset Management delivered credible 
results during the period under review. Revenue for the current 
period declined by 3.9% to N$69.58 million. Fixed costs were 
well managed, declining by 2.1%, which led to a slight decline 
in operating profit and profit before tax of N$20.5 million (2016: 
N$21.9 million) and N$22.1 million (2016: N$23.5 million), 
respectively. Total assets under management remained flat 
at N$20.0 billion at the end of September 2017 (2016: N$20.0 
billion). The directors proposed a final and only dividend for 
the financial year of 7.5 cents per ordinary share (2016: 7.5 
cents per ordinary share).

Further, around 59% of our N$20.0 billion assets under ma-
nagement are invested directly in Namibia, making us one of 
the key investors in the local market. 

COMMITTED TO GOOD CITIZENSHIP

As a leader in the Namibian investment industry, we embrace 
good corporate citizenship and the importance of robust go-
vernance. We apply the highest standards of governance, and 
ethics and integrity are deeply engrained in our Group values.

�rough our Corporate Social Investment programmes (detailed 
on page 6) we aim to make a tangible impact on our local com-
munities through initiatives that are focused on education and 

skills development. Over the past few years, we have provided 
full bursaries to 10 previously disadvantaged learners with great 
academic potential. During the course of their studies, students 
are o�ered mentorship from within the business and vacation 
work as preparation for the working world. We are proud of the 
�ve students who have successfully completed their studies. �e 
remaining �ve are enrolled at academic institutions both locally 
as well as in South Africa.

Our remuneration policy is in line with the Corporate Go ver-
nance Code for Namibia (NAMCODE) and was voted on by the 
79.5% of shareholders at our annual general meeting held on 24 
February 2017. Our remuneration policy is detailed on page 23.

�e Group has considered and applied (except where otherwise 
indicated on page 19) the principles of the NAMCODE. A detailed 
review of our commitments to corporate governance can be 
found on pages 19 to 25. �e composition of the board and its 
two committees is detailed on page 20.

�e Namibian �nancial services industry faced a myriad of chal-
lenges during the year, and we were called upon to contribute to 
various prospective legislation. We understand the importance of 
collaborating with the regulators to enable a conducive operating 
environment and are proud to have been instrumental in the 
creation of the Namibia Savings and Investment Association 
(NaSIA). NaSIA will serve as the representative body of the non-
banking sector through which our collective engagement as an 
industry will take place going forward.

DELIVERING ON OUR STRATEGY

Namibia Asset Management is singularly focused on active asset 
management. We remain committed to a single investment 
philosophy of investing for the long term, which we apply across 
all of our client portfolios. 

We o�er a complete and diversi�ed range of products to both 
retail and institutional investors, which includes a comprehensive 
range of international solutions. We are also excited about the 
prospects in relation to our money market o�ering as well as 
the re-opening of our institutional strategies.

Despite the challenges we faced this year, we remain cautiously 
optimistic about the medium-term outlook for Namibia as the 
economy is forecast to grow, albeit moderately. Looking ahead, 
we will continue to pursue a strategy of delivering investment 
excellence to our clients, in the form of outperformance and 
o�ering excellent client service.  Our robust investment phi-
losophy will continue to guide our investment decisions as we 
take the appropriate long-term views for the bene�t of our clients 
and, in doing so, derive long-term value for all stakeholders. 

I would like to thank my fellow Board members for their ongoing 
contribution to the Group. Heartfelt thanks also goes to our 
management and employees for their continued dedication to 
ensuring the sustained success of the Group. Equally, I would 
like to thank our clients, intermediaries and shareholders for 
the continued support and trust that they place in our business.  
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

SOUND RESULTS IN A CHALLENGING ENVIRONMENT

�e year under review was a challenging one, given the tough 
domestic economic environment. Notwithstanding the out-
�ows from the business, I am pleased to report that Namibia 
Asset Management delivered sound results in line with our 
expectations for the 12 months to September 2017. 

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE YEAR IN REVIEW  
• For the reporting period operating profit and profit be-

fore tax were marginally lower at N$20.5 million (2016: 
N$21.9 million) and N$22.1 million (2016: N$23.5 million), 
respectively.  

• Total comprehensive income was down 5.3% to N$15.1 
million from N$16.0 million in 2016. 

• Headline earnings per share decreased by 5.2% to 9.69 cents 
compared to 10.22 cents in 2016. 

• Our assets under management remained flat relative to the 
corresponding prior period at N$20.0 billion. 

OUR COMMITMENT TO THE LONG TERM

Namibia Asset Management is singularly focused on asset 
management. We are one of the leading independent invest-
ment managers in Namibia and the only listed asset manager. 

Our commitment to the long term and a client centric approach 
are central to the way we do business. We are committed to 
managing and delivering strong investment performance over 
the long term for all our clients.  

In collaboration with Coronation Fund Managers, our technical 

partner, we continue to focus our e�orts on constructing client 
portfolios aimed at outperforming their respective benchmarks 
over meaningful periods, which we de�ne as �ve years and 
longer. We believe this gives us an enduring competitive ad-
vantage. Our clients understand that, in our pursuit of long-term 
alpha generation, we will sacri�ce short-term returns. It is the 
cornerstone of our compelling investment track record built 
over the past 21 years. 

INVESTING IN CLIENT SERVICE EXCELLENCE

Namibia Asset Management offers a complete and diversified 
range of portfolios to both retail and institutional clients. 

In March 2017, our institutional equity and global segregated 
balanced mandates, which have been closed to new institutional 
investors since 2012, were reopened after careful consideration. 
We closed these strategies to new institutional clients to protect 
our ability to deliver on long-term performance to our existing 
clients. �e lengthy closure shows that we are prepared to make 
di�cult decisions to protect our clients’ interests. 

As part of our enduring commitment to ensure excellent service 
to our clients, we are pleased to note that we have built on 
our strong skills base. We have made two key appointments 
to complement the current team, a new head of retail, Tjivi 
Mbuende and an investment analyst, Immanuel Amupadhi. 

Following a comprehensive review of our operations and client 
services o�ering in collaboration with Coronation, we decided 
to consolidate the asset administration of all our investment 
products (currently managed by Maitland) under a single pro-

vider, JP Morgan. We expect the transfer to be completed towards 
the middle of the 2018 calendar year.

CLIENT REBALANCING IMPACTS OUR INSTITUTIONAL 
BUSINESS 

We continue to be one of the leading managers of institutional 
assets in the local savings market, with assets under manage-
ment of N$17.8 billion (2016: N$17.7 billion). 

Our institutional business experienced a total net outflow of 
N$1.1 billion (2016: N$1.3 billion) during the financial year, 
primarily due to the rebalancing of client portfolios. The impact 
of these outflows has been moderated by stronger investment 
performance due to our portfolios being well-positioned to 
benefit from the strong rally in markets worldwide.

We expect our clients to continue to be impacted by current and 
expected regulatory requirements. �is includes the amended 
Regulation 15 of the Insurance Act and Regulation 28 of the 
Pension Funds Act, which require insurance companies and 
pension funds to phase down their investments in NSX dual-
listed equities to 10% of their overall portfolio by 31 December 
2017. Further, while not yet gazetted, the local asset requirement 
is to be increased from its current level of 35% to 45% by October 
2018 in an incremental manner. 

Our institutional investment track record as at 30 September 
2017 shows that:
• Our Global Houseview Portfolios have delivered annualised 

returns of 14.0% and 11.3% (gross of fees) over rolling five 
and ten-year periods respectively. These returns represent 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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CEO
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an outperformance of the benchmark of 0.8% and 0.7% per 
annum respectively (see illustration below).

• Our Namibian Equity Portfolio has delivered 23.2% per 
annum (gross of fees) since its launch in June 2010.

• Our South African Equity Portfolio has delivered 13.1% 
per annum (gross of fees) on a rolling five-year basis 
and 15.6% per annum since its launch in June 2010, an 
annualised outperformance of its benchmark of 0.3% and 
0.6% respectively.

RETAIL BUSINESS FACES UP TO ECONOMIC CHALLENGES

Against a backdrop of tough economic conditions which im-
pacted on the disposable income of clients, our market share 
of retail assets saw a slight decline to 4.3% (2016: 4.6%). 

Across the �nancial services industry, assets under management 
grew by 8% during the period, but unfortunately we did not 
capture much of this growth as this was mostly recorded in the 
money market sector of the industry. Management companies 
with associations to banks gained more market share. However, 
net out�ows for the period were much lower compared to the 
prior year at N$198 million (2016: N$806 million) for Namibia 
Asset Management and remain one of Namibia’s notable third-
party unit trust managers, with assets of N$2.2 billion under 
management (2016: N$2.3 billion). 

Performance of our fund range as at 30 September 2017:
• NAM Coronation Balanced Plus, our flagship fund for 

long-term investors such as pension funds, has delivered 
11.8% (net of fees) per annum (net of fees) on a five-year 
basis and 11.1% (net of fees) per annum since inception 
in December 2011.

• NAM Coronation Capital Plus, a multi-asset medium-equity 
fund, has delivered 8.5% per annum (net of fees) on a five-
year basis and 9.8% per annum (net of fees) since inception 
in November 2007.

• NAM Coronation Balanced Defensive, a top-performing 
conservative fund, has delivered 9.7% per annum (net 
of fees) on a five-year basis and 9.2% per annum (net of 
fees) since inception in November 2007. This represents 
annualised outperformance of 2.0% (net of fees) per annum 
when measured against cash.

• NAM Coronation Strategic Income, a multi-asset income 
fund, has delivered 7.6% per annum (net of fees) on a 
five-year basis and 7.9% (net of fees) per annum since in-
ception in November 2007. This represents annualised 

outperformance of its cash benchmark by 0.8% per annum.
• NAM Coronation Money Market, a solution for investors 

that seek alternatives to a bank deposit, has delivered 7.6% 
(net of fees) on a one-year basis and 7.4% (net of fees) per 
annum since its inception in December 2015.

SETTING OUR SIGHTS BEYOND THE SHORT TERM

Going forward, we expect economic conditions to remain 
chal lenging. This, coupled with regulatory interventions, will 
continue to put pressure on investment returns and flows into 
the foreseeable future. Despite these challenges, we remain 
committed to delivering superior long-term investment per-
formance and excellent service to our clients.

We are positive about introducing new local institutional clients 
to our re-opened mandates as well as our expanded global 
o�ering and money market funds. Further, we believe that our 
singular focus on identifying the best investment opportunities 
across our client portfolios will generate long-term value for 
all stakeholders.

THANK YOU TO ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS

I would like to thank all of our clients, business partners and 
stakeholders for their continued support and trust in our ability to 
create long-term value. In addition, the hard work and dedication 
of our employees continue to be key drivers of our success. 

NAM’S BALANCED GLOBAL PORTFOLIOS’ PERFORMANCE 
Source: NMG Namibia Large Manager Investment Survey as at 30 September 2017
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

 Number of
shareholders 

 % of
shareholders 

 Number of
shares 

 % of
shares 

Range of shareholders

1 - 99 shares  28 8,83%  1,350 0,01%
100 - 499 shares  56 17,67%  9,400 0,00%
500 - 999 shares  28 8,83%  15,690 0,01%
1 000 - 1 999 shares  54 17,03%  58,500 0,03%
2 000 - 2 999 shares  22 6,94%  46,200 0,02%
3 000 - 3 999 shares  6 1,89%  18,000 0,01%
4 000 - 4 999 shares  2 0,64%  8,000 0,00%
5 000 - 9 999 shares  58 18,30%  340,200 0,17%
10 000 shares and above  63 19,87%  199,502,660 99,75%

Total shareholders  317 100,00%

Total number of shares issued  200,000,000 100,00%

Public and non-public shareholders

Public shareholders  312 98,42% 72,789,015 36.39
Non-public shareholders  5 1,58% 127,210,985 63.61

 317 100,00%  200,000,000 100,00%

Category

Corporate bodies  12 3.79%  80,284,118 40,14%
Nominee companies  15 4.73% 62,110,364 31,06%
Private individuals  285 89.91% 11,738,318 5,87%
Trusts  5 1.57%  45,867,200 22,93%

 317 100,00%  200,000,000 100,00%

 Number 
of shares

 % of 
shares

Large shareholders - more than 5% of share capital

Coronation Investment Management (Pty) Ltd  80,096,518 40,05%
The Orban Street Trust  42,000,800 21,00%
Standard Bank Namibia (Nominees)(Pty) Ltd  25,395,159 12,70%
First National Bank Namibia (Nominees) (Pty) Ltd  29,474,261 14,74%

 176,966,738 88,49%

Directors' interest in share capital
2017 2016

Number of shares

Directors' direct holding
RG Young  93,667  93,667 
E Emvula  1,250,000  1,250,000 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

OUR APPROACH TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

�e directors of the Group are dedicated to the principles of best 
practice in corporate governance. �is report details the key 
policies, processes and structures that are applied in order to 
achieve a balanced approach to corporate governance, including 
the principles of the Corporate Governance Code for Namibia 
(NAMCODE). �e Board recognises that corporate governance 
is not limited to disclosure in the integrated annual report, but 
that it is about actively incorporating the principles in day-to-
day operations and thus improving the trust and con�dence 
of all our stakeholders.

APPLICATION OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE 
FOR NAMIBIA

The directors are of the opinion that the Group has applied the 
principles of the NAMCODE (the Code). In the instances where 
the Group has elected not to apply certain aspects thereof or 
was unable to apply the principles, the Board has provided 
explanations as below:

THE BOARD

�e Group’s Board is the highest decision-making body and 
oversees the implementation of corporate governance within the 
Group. �e Board has formally designated two sub-committees, 
namely the Audit and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee. Each Board Committee has a clearly 
de�ned set of Board delegated responsibilities to augment the 
Board’s governance responsibilities. �e Board has reporting 
mechanisms and approved delegated levels of authority in place, 
which are regularly reviewed.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As required by the Code, the Group Board is collectively re-
spon sible for the Group’s performance and a�airs. �e directors 
collectively have the integrity, skills and experience to provide 
in dependent insight and value to the Group. �e number and 
stature of independent non-executive directors serving on the 
Board ensures that objectivity is achieved and that an appropriate 
balance of power and authority is maintained on the Board. 

In compliance with the recommendations of the Code, NAM’s 
unitary Board comprises two executive directors, being the 
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, and 
seven non-executive directors, of which five are deemed to be 
independent. The Board is responsible for appointing the Chief 
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. The roles of 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer have been specifically 
separated.

The Board considers the following non-executive directors to 
be independent: 
• Mr G Young
• Mrs B Rossouw 
• Mr S Walters 
• Mr T Shaanika 
• Mrs E Angula

In determining the independence of the aforementioned di-
rectors the Board, amongst others considered the following:
• On-going and annual declaration of independence by each 

director.

NAMCODE Principle Explanation

Principle 2.16: The Board should elect a chairman of the Board who is an independent 
non-executive director.

The Chairperson of the Board is a non-executive director. While he is not deemed to be independent due to his role at Coronation (a signi�cant shareholder of the Company) the 
Board is of the opinion that this does not impede his ability to act independently. The composition of the Board, the majority of which are independent non-executives, also acts as a 
mitigating factor in ensuring that the objectives of this principle are met.

Principle 2.23: The Board Committees should consist of a majority of independent non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee does not consist of a majority of independent non-executive directors but one independent non-executive director (who is also the 
Chairperson) and one non-executive director who is not deemed to be independent due to his role at Coronation (a signi�cant shareholder of the Company).  The Board is however of 
the opinion that this does not impede his ability to act independently and is therefore of the opinion that the current constitution of this committee is adequate to achieve its objectives. 
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• Direct or indirect shareholding of a director, including the 
ability to exercise significant influence over management.

• Employment within the Group during the preceding three 
financial years.

• Other professional relationships with the Group.

Mr A Pillay and Mrs A Rhoda are not deemed to be independent 
non-executive directors due to their roles within Coronation 
Investment Management (Pty) Ltd, a 40.05% shareholder of 
the Company. Mr G Young owns 0.05% shares in NAM, which 
is deemed to be insignificant and thus unlikely to compromise 
his independence. The Board has considered these associations 
and regards the industry expertise and experience of these 
directors as beneficial to the Group. Profiles of the directors 
are detailed on page 12.

The Board provides strategic direction to management and 
approves the implementation of strategy to create sustainable 
value for all stakeholders. The Board is accountable to share-
holders and is responsible for managing relationships with our 
various stakeholders. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Board 
is aware of the importance of achieving economic performance 
while conforming to governance principles. All directors have 
unlimited access to the services of the Company Secretary, who 
in turn has access to appropriate resources in the provision of 
this support. All directors are also entitled to seek independent 
professional advice with regard to the affairs of the Group. 
The Company Secretary is readily available to assist directors, 
Board Committees and their members in obtaining professional 
advice.

�e composition of the Board and its two committees, the Audit 
and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee as at 30 September 2017, is depicted below.

The Group applies a formalised and very transparent nomi-
nation and appointment process to the Board. Our Articles 
of Association provides that at least a third of the directors 
should retire at each Annual General Meeting. In line with this 
requirement, the following directors retired during the current 
year and have made themselves available for re-appointment. 
Their re-appointment will be tabled for approval at the next 
annual general meeting:
• Mr S Walters
• Mrs B Rossouw
• Mrs E Angula

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE 

Four scheduled Board meetings were held during the year, 
together with four Audit and Risk Committee meetings and 
two Remuneration and Nominations Committee meetings. 
An additional strategic Board meeting was held during the 
financial year. The non-executive directors are provided with 
comprehensive information on the business and are updated on 
business developments between Board meetings. Attendance 
by directors at Board and Committee meetings is shown in 
the following table.

*Attended on invitation
#Absent with prior apologies

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND APPRAISALS

Independent non-executive directors receive fees for their ser-
vices as directors of the Board and for services as members of 
the Committees. �ese fees are in line with our remuneration 
policy. 

An appraisal of the Board and its committees has been con-
cluded during the financial year with reference to their charters 
and the Code. The Board and its committees are satisfied with 
the outcome of these appraisals.

THE ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER

There is a clear division of responsibilities between leading the 
Board and executive responsibility for running the business, so 
that no one person has unfettered powers of decision. 

A clear separation is maintained between the responsibilities of 
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman is 
responsible for leadership of the Board and creating conditions 
for overall Board and individual director effectiveness, while 
the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall per-
formance of the Group, including the responsibility for the 

Director Board Audit and Risk 
Committee

Remuneration 
and Nominations 
Committee

Anton Pillay Chairman - Member
Birgit Rossouw Director Member -
Elize Angula Director - -
Gordon Young Director - Chairman
Schalk Walters Director Chairman -
Tarah Shaanika Director - -
Aimee Rhoda Director Member -
Eino Emvula CEO - -
Ulrich Eiseb CFO - -

Director Board Audit and Risk 
Committee

Remuneration 
and Nominations 
Committee

Anton Pillay 100% - 100%
Birgit Rossouw 100% 100% -
Elize Angula 75%# - -
Gordon Young 100% - 100%
Schalk Walters 100% 100% -
Tarah Shaanika 100% - -
Aimee Rhoda 100% 100% -
Eino Emvula 100% 100%* 100%*
Ulrich Eiseb 100% 100%* -

“ NAM remains committed to a single investment 

philosophy of investing for the long term, which  

we apply across all of our client portfolios.”

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7

2 0   /   T H E  Y E A R  U N D E R  R E V I E W C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E



effective day-to-day management of the activities of the Group.

The Board is satisfied that the Chairman has succeeded in:
• Setting an ethical tone for the Group;
• Providing overall leadership to the Board;
• Identifying and participating in the selection of Board mem-

bers and senior management appointments;
• Playing an active part in setting the agenda for Board mee-

tings in conjunction with the CEO and Company Secretary;
• Presiding over meetings;
• Managing conflicts of interest;
• Monitoring how the Board works together and how indi-

vidual directors perform and interact at meetings;
• Evaluating the performance of the Board and its committees 

and instituting interventions as may be required; and
• Acting as a link between the Board and management.

DIRECTOR DEVELOPMENT

�e Group has a formal induction programme for new directors. 
Ongoing support and resources are provided to directors in order 
to enable them to extend and refresh their skills, knowledge and 
familiarity with the Group and the industry.

Professional development and training is provided in three 
complementary ways:
• Regular updates on changes and proposed changes in laws 

and regulations and other industry-related matters a�ecting 
the Group.

• Arrangements to ensure directors are familiar with the 
Group’s operations.

• Opportunities for professional and skills training.

COMPANY SECRETARY

�e Board selects and appoints the Company Secretary and 
recognises the importance of this role in entrenching good 
corporate governance. All directors have unlimited access to the 
services of the Company Secretary, who in turn has access to 
appropriate resources in the provision of this support. �e Board 

is satis�ed with the performance of the Company Secretary 
in executing the tasks as recommended by the Code and as 
required by relevant legislation. Given the size of the Group 
we deem it appropriate that the Company Secretary is also an 
executive director and con�rm that this is unlikely to impede 
on his duties.

ETHICS

�e directors and employees are required to maintain the high-
est ethical standards; ensuring business practices are above 
reproach.

�e Group has adopted a formal Code of Ethics, which all em-
ployees and members have to sign and agree to. �is Code of 
Ethics includes stipulations on performance and reward, risk 
and integrity, values and aspirations, con�dentiality, disclosures 
of con�icts of interests, restrictions on share dealing activities 
and dealings with the press. 

All employees are required to complete a bi-annual declaration 
that includes, inter alia, the provision of information and/
or declarations in relation to outside interests, conflicts of 
interest, and general compliance with the requirements of 
the Group’s Code of Ethics. The directors are also required to 
complete these declarations annually. The Board believes that 
the ethical standards are being met and the stipulations of the 
Code of Ethics are adhered to.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board places considerable importance on effective com-
munication with shareholders and therefore engages with 
shareholders, based on the mutual understanding of objectives. 
It is the responsibility of the Board as a whole to ensure that 
satisfactory dialogue takes place. The Chief Executive Officer 
is the first point of contact with shareholders.

The Annual General Meeting remains an important opportunity 
for shareholders to meet the Board and discuss any concerns 

they may have. The Board utilises the Annual General Meeting 
to communicate with institutional and private investors and 
welcomes their participation. 

At the Annual General Meeting on 24 February 2017, the Chief 
Executive O�cer and the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Com-
mittee were present to answer questions from the attendees. 

Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General 
Meeting on 23 February 2018 can be found in the Notice of the 
Meeting at the back of this publication. 

In accordance with the Namibian Companies Act, notice of 
the Annual General Meeting and related papers will be sent to 
shareholders within the prescribed period before the meeting.

INSIDER TRADING

No employee or director may deal, directly or indirectly, in NAM 
shares on the basis of unpublished price-sensitive information. 
No directors or employees may trade in NAM shares during 
embargo periods determined by the Board. �ese include periods 
between the end of the interim and �nancial year-end reporting 
periods and the announcement of the �nancial results for such 
periods. 

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit and Risk Committee 
(‘the Committee’) to assist in the oversight and review of 
the financial, operational and risk management activities 
of the Group, including information technology risks. The 
Committee is responsible for ensuring the integrity of the 
financial reporting process, internal reporting and controls, 
management of strategic, major financial and operational risks 
and the internal and external audit processes based on sound 
principles of accountability, transparency and responsibility.
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COMPOSITION

�e Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive 
director and consists of a further two non-executive directors, 
of which one is deemed to be independent. Mrs A Rhoda is not 
deemed independent due to her employment at Coronation, 
however the Board does not have any reason to believe that this 
will impair her ability to add value in an objective manner to the 
Committee. �e Committee’s collective skills are appropriate 
to execute the tasks mandated by the Board and the Chapter 
3 recommendations of the Code.

DISCHARGE OF RESPONSIBILITIES

�e Committee discharges its responsibilities for the whole Group. 
It serves in an advisory capacity to the Board and assists the 
directors in discharging their duties relating to the safeguarding 
of assets, the operation of adequate systems, risk management 
and internal controls, the review of �nancial information and the 
preparation of the annual �nancial statements, the internal and 
external audit process, as well as their oversight responsibility for 
the integrated annual report. �is includes assuring the Board 
that adequate operating and �nancial internal controls are in 
place and that material risks have been identi�ed and are being 
e�ectively managed and monitored. 

In ful�lling its responsibility of assisting the Board in dis charging 
its duty to shareholders, the Committee is guided by a charter, 
approved by the Board. �e Chairman of the Committee reports 
on the activities of the Committee at all meetings of the Board 
and attends the Annual General Meetings as recommended 
by the Code. 

The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive Officers and 
the internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to 
the Chairman of the Committee. 

The Committee is satisfied with the expertise and adequacy 
of resources within the finance function, as well as with the 
performance and competency of the Chief Financial Officer. 

The Committee is of the opinion that he has the appropriate 
expertise and experience to meet his responsibilities in that 
position. In making these assessments, feedback was obtained 
from, amongst other the external and internal auditors and 
the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. Based on the 
processes followed and assurances obtained, the Committee 
is of the view that the accounting practices are effective and 
that the Chief Financial Officer is competent. 

During the year, the Committee approved the external auditors’ 
terms of engagement and scope of work and also reviewed and 
approved the internal auditors’ coverage plan for the 2017/2018 
financial year, aimed at providing assurance in respect of the 
various levels of operations. 

�e Committee is committed to the bene�ts of the combined 
assurance model and obtains an update at its quarterly meetings 
from management on any external assurances that were received 
during the quarter under review. �e external assurances have 
also been linked to the risk mitigation steps in the Group’s risk 
register. 

During the approval process of the internal audit coverage plan, 
input was obtained from the external auditors, as ap propriate, 
to ensure that the work to be performed by the internal auditor 
would complement the external audit work. �e internal audit 
coverage plan for the 2016/2017 �nancial year was also linked to 
our combined assurance model as well as to the risk register as 
per the principles of the combined assurance approach envisaged 
in the Code. A signi�cant portion of NAM’s key operating activities 
are outsourced to Coronation and Maitland Fund Services, and 
these activities are subjected to regular internal and external audit 
reviews by their respective internal and external audit functions. 
�e Committee has developed processes to keep abreast of any 
�ndings, which emanate from these audit functions, which 
will potentially impact its responsibilities. KPMG Namibia also 
reviews the ISAE 3402 reports issued by Deloitte South Africa on 
Maitland Fund Services controls to determine any report items, 
which may have an impact on NAM’s operations. 

The Board is satisfied with the ability of the Committee and 
confirms that it has effectively discharged its obligations as 
required. The Committee met four times during the year. Four 
meetings are scheduled for the 2018 financial year.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

�e Group Remuneration and Nominations Committee (Remco) 
is responsible for the implementation of the Group’s remuneration 
policy (see page 23). �e Remco also has the responsibility to 
ensure that the Group’s nominations policy caters for succession 
planning across key areas of the business, and to ensure that the 
board is resourced with individuals who have the appropriate 
expertise, quali�cations and experience to ful�l the role of com-
pany director. 

The Remco is responsible for key decisions regarding remu-
neration, including those with implications for the overall risk 
management of the Group. 

�e Remco charter provides comprehensive details on the com-
position, roles and responsibilities of the Remco. �e Remco 
met twice during the year and its Chairman reports back on the 
activities of the Remco at the meetings of the Board. 

COMPOSITION

�e Remco is constituted in such a way as to enable it to exercise 
competent and independent judgement on remuneration po-
licies and practices. �e Remco should have at least two in-
dependent members, ideally with experience and knowledge of 
the investment industry, which are necessary to exercise sound 
judgement. An independent non-executive director chairs the 
Remco. �e other member of the Remco is the Chairman of the 
Board who is also a non-executive director. �e Chief Executive 
O�cer attends all Remco meetings in an ex o�cio capacity.
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REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Group’s remuneration policy applies to all our employees 
and non-executive directors, which comprises Namibia Asset 
Management Limited, its subsidiaries and all controlled en-
tities. It is aligned with our long-term corporate objectives 
and strategy. 

Embedded in its structure and implementation is the under-
standing that one of the most significant assets of the Group 
are its employees. It is their collective output that drives the 
success of our business and their retention and appropriate 
incentivisation is key to our long-term success. 

Our remuneration policy is accordingly aimed at ensuring that 
the remuneration process supports our values, specifically: 
• Focusing on long-term outcomes – all decision-making, 

both in business and investment management, is made 
with a long-term view, regardless of any potential short-
term benefit;

• Always putting clients first – clients’ interests come before 
all other stakeholders and if the Group is successful in 
delivering on this promise, all stakeholders will prosper; 

• Creating a culture of ownership – it is important that 
employees feel and behave like long-term owners of the 
business; 

• Recognising that the Group is a team-based organisation. 
It is critical that, as a consequence of the remuneration 
process, employees do not pursue personal interests at 
the expense of the organisation. It is essential that the 
performance appraisal process balances the performance 
of the individual with that of the team in which he/she 
operates and the broader organisation;

• The Group is able to attract, retain and motivate highly 
talented and sought-after individuals; 

• Employees are rewarded for outstanding and excellent 
performance. This is essential if the Group’s remuneration 
process is to successfully support its strong performance 
culture;

• The remuneration structures and implementation are 
simple and easy to understand, and result in as few unin-
tended consequences as possible; 

• �e remuneration process is holistic enough to be able to 
make a proper assessment of the performance of an indi-
vidual without excessive reliance on mechanistic quan-
titative metrics. �ese quantitative metrics can often be 
attained by pursuing means, which result in unintended 
Group outcomes. �e assessment process should therefore 
not shy away from qualitative considerations, which are often 
more revealing of an individual’s performance than his/her 
performance when measured against quantitative metrics;

• The rewards for excellent performance should align em-
ployees’ interests with that of the broader organisation 
and its clients. This is best achieved through a variable 
remuneration structure that allows employees to share in 
the Group’s success, but also requires them to participate 
in any decline in the Group’s earnings; 

• An effective balance is achieved between cash and deferred 
remuneration to ensure alignment with stakeholder inte-
rests, business sustainability and the Group’s long-term 
ethos; and

• Good corporate governance in relation to remuneration is 
applied and the approach to remuneration is consistent 
with, and promotes, sound and effective risk management .

REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES 

A key characteristic of the remuneration policy is that it is 
simple and avoids complicated structures that can result in 
unintended outcomes. Total employee remuneration consists 
of fixed and variable (performance-based) remuneration for all 
employees of the Group. 

Fixed remuneration is based on an employee’s role and re-
sponsibilities and on market conditions. For senior employees, 
we endeavour to set fixed remuneration below market-related 
levels. In the case of its most senior employees, the differential 
should be material. 

The variable remuneration component enables employees to 
share in the value that they have created for all stakeholders. 
Its application has been the cornerstone of our success over 
more than two decades and underpins our values. It entrenches 
ownership and a strong performance culture, and aligns em-
ployees and shareholders’ interests through the symmetrical 
manner in which employees share in the Group’s success and 
any decline in earnings. 

In determining the total remuneration of an employee, due 
consideration is given to individual performance over the longer 
term, as well as the most recent 12-month period. An individual’s 
performance as part of the team in which he/she operates is 
also considered. The performance assessment process is 
holistic and gives as much consideration to qualitative as to 
quantitative metrics.

�e genesis of the agreed annual variable component of the re-
muneration policy occurred at the inception of the Group when 
variable remuneration was introduced to share the risks and 
rewards of ownership and incentivise employees to build a leading 
fund management Group from a zero base. �e annual variable 
remuneration component is calculated up to a maximum of 20% 
of the audited annual consolidated net operating pro�t, before 
taxation of the Group (the variable remuneration formula). It is 
a tool that has demonstrated its value to all stakeholders and 
represents a contractual commitment between the Group and 
its employees. 

The annual variable remuneration component is allocated to 
all employees of the Group on an individual basis and is not 
allocated to departments. The allocations to employees may 
include the following components: 
• Cash. 
• Payments for restraint of trade undertakings and notice 

period extensions. 
• Deferred remuneration payments, which are allocated to 

the Orban Street Trust. 
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Deferred remuneration payments are utilised to purchase either 
NAM shares or NAM or Coronation unit trust products, which 
are allocated to eligible employees. �ese allocations vest in stag-
gered percentages over a three-year period. As a meritocracy, 
the same terms and conditions apply to all eligible employees. 
�ese allocations are made to employees who possess skills key 
to the continued success of the Group as demonstrated by their 
contribution and expertise. �e Remco may approve any other 
form of remuneration or incentivisation from time to time. 

Senior employees will experience more variability in their ear-
nings due to the volatility embedded in the variable remuneration 
formula. Junior employees should be shielded to a degree from 
the volatility embedded in variable remuneration by awarding 
them steady and consistent annual increases based on their 
individual performance. 

�e Group’s policies encourage behaviour that is in line with 
the risk management strategy. �e entrenchment of employee 
ownership and the deferral of a signi�cant portion of an em-
ployee’s remuneration ensures behaviour which is consistent 
with the risk pro�les, rules and memorandum of incorporation 
of the entities being managed.

Variable remuneration paid to eligible employees under this 
policy or otherwise shall, to the maximum extent permissible 
in law, not form part of and be excluded from employees’ 
remuneration for the purposes of calculating any annual leave, 
severance pay, notice pay or other entitlements due to the 
employees by law or otherwise.

Employees and managers must undertake a performance review 
annually (as a minimum) to assess past performance against 
objectives and to set new goals. 

�e objectives set for employees should be ambitious, veri�able, 
relevant, quantitative and qualitative. 

Proposed remuneration allocations to eligible individual 
em ployees are formulated and submitted to the Remco for 

consideration and approval. When considering and approving 
the final recommended allocation, the Remco will satisfy it-
self that the process that governs the assessment of an em-
ployee’s performance is robust and fair. This will inform the 
recommended allocation and take into account whether it 
meets the Group’s needs and strategic objectives, and that it 
is consistent with, and promotes, effective risk management. 

The Remco may make adjustments to an individual’s final 
recommended remuneration, as it objectively considers appro-
priate. Upon approval of the respective individual remuneration 
by the Remco, payments are made in accordance with such 
allocations, but subject to the Group’s policy on when payments 
of approved and allocated variable remuneration are to be made. 

Employee ownership of NAM equity contributes significantly to 
the culture and values of the Group. As such, it is desirable for 
employees to hold a meaningful equity stake in the company. 

THE ORBAN STREET TRUST

The Orban Street Trust is a trust established for the admini-
stration of deferred remuneration and employee ownership 
schemes. It provides employees with the confidence that 
the allocations will be managed appropriately and that the 
underlying investments will be distributed to them in future 
years on condition that the relevant terms and conditions are 
met. The terms of the allocations do allow for forfeiture under 
specific circumstances. Details of this scheme are contained 
in note 14 and 14.3.2.

The trustees of the Orban Street Trust are independent of the 
executives and ensure that, once allocations have been made, 
the rules are strictly applied to all beneficiaries. 

THE NAM STAFF SHARE SCHEME

The NAM Staff Share Scheme is a trust established to administer 
the share-based payment scheme of the Group. All employees 
are eligible to participate and are therefore beneficiaries of 

the scheme. Details of this scheme is contained in note 14.3.1.

The trustees of the NAM Staff Share Scheme are independent 
of the executives and ensure that options are allocated and 
the scheme administered strictly in line with the trust deed. 

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’  
REMUNE RATION 

Non-executive directors of the Group receive an annual �xed fee 
and an attendance fee for Board and sub-committee meetings 
as approved by shareholders at the AGM of the prior �nancial 
year. �e fees are proposed and approved based on market-
related factors and the duties and responsibilities of each of 
the functions performed by the non-executive directors. Non-
executive directors do not participate in any of the remuneration 
structures addressed in the remuneration policy document nor 
do they receive share options.

All executive directors’ employment contracts are based on the 
standard terms of employment, without term limits, which are 
applied throughout the organisation. The executive directors 
have concluded restraint of trade agreements, which prevent 
them from engaging in any activities that will directly compete 
with the Group’s objective for a period of six months following 
their termination of employment.

A three-month notice period applies to the majority of em-
ployees. 

The remuneration of the executive and non-executive directors 
is disclosed in note 14.2. 

APPROVAL OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remco reviews and approves the remuneration policy 
annually and may, from time to time, review and/or amend the 
provisions of this policy, subject to Board approval.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE 

RISK MANAGEMENT

Management is accountable to the Board for designing, im-
plementing and monitoring the process of risk management 
and integrating it into the day-to-day activities of the Group. 
The Board is responsible for oversight of risk management, 
which includes forming its own opinion on the effectiveness 
of the risk management processes.

The Board sets the risk strategy policies, decides on the Group’s 
tolerance for risk and makes use of generally recognised risk 
management and internal control models and frameworks 
in doing so. The Board is responsible for ensuring that a sys-
tematic, documented assessment of the processes and the 
outcomes surrounding key risks is undertaken. 

A risk register has been developed which includes the most 
significant risks that could impact the achievement of our 
objectives, and the mitigating actions implemented to reduce 
the likelihood and potential impact of these risks. Additional 
measures are also implemented to reduce the residual risk to 
an acceptable level. The risk register is reviewed on a quarterly 
basis and any updates are reviewed and discussed at the Audit 
and Risk Committee and Board meetings. 

A quarterly incident report is prepared whereby risks that 
materialised and control breaches are reported to the Audit 
and Risk Committee and the Board, together with their impact 
(both financial and non-financial) and the relevant remedial 
and preventative action taken. 

The Group’s risk objectives are to:
• Create awareness and understanding of risks at all levels 

of the Group by training employees and by management 
providing guidance.

• Integrate concerns for risk into the Group’s daily decision -
making and implementation processes.

• Identify and manage risks within the risk appetite and risk 

tolerance parameters, which coincide with the Board’s 
strategy and objectives.

• Improve the Group’s ability to prevent, detect, correct, es-
ca late and respond to critical risk issues by executing risk 
management plans, recommendations and monitoring 
e�ectively.

• Comply with appropriate risk management practices in 
terms of corporate governance guidelines in the Code.

The most significant risks facing the Group, together with the 
relevant mitigating controls, which we have implemented, have 
been identified as follows:

�e Board can con�rm that no matters have come to the atten-
tion of the Board to indicate that there has been any material 
breakdown in the risk management function, processes or 
systems during the year under review. Further, no incidences 
occurred which exceeded the Board’s risk tolerance levels during 
the period under review.

COMPLIANCE

�e Chief Financial O�cer is primarily responsible for mo-
nitoring compliance with all relevant laws, client mandates 
and other regulatory obligations, which impacts the Group. 
Regulatory compliance is achieved by, �rstly, identifying and 
understanding the full universe of relevant laws and regulations 
and, secondly, by training employees and embedding compliance 
requirements in processes and controls.

The Chief Financial Officer, manages an ongoing training and 
awareness programme. The programme includes induction 
training for new starters, the provision of required regulatory 
training, compliance broadcasts sent by email to all or impacted 
employees. 

During the period under review, we can confirm that the Group 
did not have any regulatory penalties, sanctions or fines for 
contraventions or non-compliance with regulatory obligations 
imposed on it or any of its directors or officers.

Risk Management and mitigation

Investment and 
performance risk

The Group manages market risk through its 
structured investment process. 

A strict investment philosophy and process is 
followed by the investment team in the analysis of 
potential investments.

Outsourcing risk The Group has outsourced various parts of the 
business processes to external parties. All key 
relationships are managed through service level 
agreements which specify the requirements from 3rd 
party service providers. 

The internal and external auditors review audit reports 
generated by 3rd party service providers to enable us 
to detect any weaknesses or risks, which may have an 
impact on the Group. Regular service review meetings 
are held with the 3rd party service providers.

Client concentration 
risks

Due to the size of Namibia’s investor market, we are at 
risk of being exposed to concentration risks. 

We mitigate these risks by continuously reviewing 
and enhancing our product o�ering to ensure that 
we broaden our client base. Further, frequent client 
engagements are conducted to ensure that our service 
levels, as well as our product o�ering, meet their 
requirements.

Fraud and cyber security 
risk

Continual review and enhancement of business 
processes and operational controls are designed to 
identify and prevent fraudulent activity.

External assurance providers are engaged to test the 
e�ectiveness of IT security procedures, including those 
at 3rd party service providers.

Regulatory risks Namibia’s regulatory landscape is rapidly changing 
to adapt to the local socio-political and economic 
environment. We also need to comply with 
international requirements.

We have adopted a pro-active approach to deal 
with regulatory changes. This includes continuous 
engagement with various regulators and stakeholders 
to provide guidance and input as may be necessary. 
Further we ensure we keep abreast of regulatory 
changes to align our operations and strategies 
accordingly.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair pre-
sentation of the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements of Namibia Asset Management Limited, comprising 
the statement of financial position at 30 September 2017, 
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which 
include a summary of significant accounting policies and the 
directors’ report in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act of Namibia.

�e directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of these �nancial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making ac-
counting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
�e Board reviews the operation of the system of internal control 
primarily through the Audit and Risk Committee of the Group.

The directors’ responsibility also includes maintaining adequate 
accounting records and an effective system of risk management, 
as well as the preparation of the supplementary schedules 
included in these financial statements. The directors have 
made an assessment of the Group’s and Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and there is no reason to believe 
the businesses will not be going concerns in the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the con-
solidated and separate annual financial statements of Namibia 
Asset Management Limited are fairly presented in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
Companies Act of Namibia.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements 
of Namibia Asset Management Limited  for the year ended 30 
September 2017, set out on pages 32 to 76, were approved by 
the Board of directors on 18 December 2017 and are signed 
on its behalf by:

EINO EMVULA
Chief Executive Officer

ANTON PILLAY
Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated and separate �nancial state-
ments of Namibia Asset Management Limited (“the Group 
and Company”) set out on pages 32 to 76, which comprise the 
statements of �nancial position as at 30 September 2017, and the 
statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes 
in equity and the statements of cash �ows for the year then ended, 
and the notes to the �nancial statements, including a summary of 
signi�cant accounting policies, and the directors’ report.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate �nancial state-
ments present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and 
separate �nancial position of Namibia Asset Management Limited 
as at 30 September 2017, and its consolidated and separate �-
nancial performance and consolidated and se pa rate cash �ows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act of Namibia.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Stan-
dards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those stan-
dards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group and 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountant’s Code of Professional Accountants (IESBA 
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to per-
forming audits of �nancial statements in Namibia. We have 
ful�lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Namibia. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su�cient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the con-
solidated and separate financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

OTHER INFORMATION

�e directors are responsible for the other information. �e other 
information comprises all information contained in the Annual 
Report. Other information does not include the consolidated and 
separate �nancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate �nancial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NAMIBIA ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recognition of revenue relating to unit trust fund fees and segregated fund fees
Please refer to note 1.15 to the �nancial statements for the relevant accounting policy and to note 12 for further information. 

This key audit matter is applicable to both the consolidated and separate �nancial statements.

Unit trust fund fees and segregated fund fees included in revenue represent a 
signi�cant balance in the statement of comprehensive income, amounting to N$69.6 
million.

The recognition of unit trust fund fees and segregated fund fees is dependent on the 
terms of the underlying investment management contracts between the Group and 
Company and its clients and/or the funds it manages. 

The Group and Company focuses on unit trust fund fees and segregated fund fees 
as a key performance measure which could create an incentive for incorrect revenue 
to be recognised. In addition, these fees are manually captured from third party 
administrators’ records into the accounting system, thereby resulting in a signi�cant 
risk associated with revenue recognition. 

Due to the signi�cant risk associated with revenue recognition and the involvement of 
the third party administrators resulting in signi�cant work e�orts from the audit team, 
the recognition of unit trust fund fees and segregated fund fees was considered a key 
audit matter.

Our audit procedures for unit trust fund fees and segregated fund fees, included the 
following:

We tested the operating e�ectiveness of controls around the capturing and processing 
of assets under management and the recognition of related revenue. 

We relied on the work done by the independent auditor of the third party 
administrator with regard to the key controls over valuation and holdings data relating 
to assets under management.  We assessed the independence, competence and 
integrity of the independent auditor of the third party administrator. In addition, 

• We performed testing over these controls to obtain audit evidence over the 
integrity of this data. We then reconciled the output from our testing to the 
balances included in the �nancial statements.

• We recalculated a sample of management fees and rebates based on the terms 
within the investment management contracts and agreed these to original 
source documents.

• We performed predictive analytical tests of fees received for a sample of client 
portfolios.

• We tested a sample of revenue and trade receivables at year end by agreeing 
open invoices at year end to subsequent receipts from customers to ensure that 
revenue has been accounted for in the correct �nancial year.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate 
�nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infor-
mation is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and 
separate �nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE  
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�e directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated and separate �nancial state-
ments in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of 
Namibia, and for such internal control as the directors deter-
mine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
and separate �nancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate �nancial statements, 
the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and Com-
pany’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend 
to liquidate the Group and/or Company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whe-
ther the consolidated and separate financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and 
separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 

of the consolidated and separate financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are ap-
propriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s 
or the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast signi�cant doubt 
on the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate �nancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group and/or Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of 
the consolidated and separate �nancial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate 
�nancial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and sig-
nificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding in-
dependence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we deter-
mine those matters that were of most signi�cance in the audit 
of the consolidated and separate �nancial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest bene�ts of such communication.

KPMG

REGISTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (NAMIBIA)

Per: V Mugabo 
Partner
Windhoek
18 December 2017
30 Schanzen Road, Klein Windhoek, 
Windhoek

KPMG
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of  NAM are pleased to present their report to the 
shareholders for the financial year ended 30 September 2017. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

NAM is a Namibian asset manager listed on the Namibian 
Stock Exchange. 

NAM manages investments for both institutional and retail 
clients.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

�e �nancial statements on pages 34 to 76 fully set out the �nan-
cial position, operating results and cash �ows of the Group and 
Company. Your attention is also drawn to the Chairman’s report, 
the Chief Executive O�cer’s report detailed on pages 14 to 17.

INSTITUTIONAL BUSINESS

NAM remains one of the leading managers of institutional assets 
in the local savings industry, with AuM of N$17.8 billion (2016: 
N$17.7 billion). Our institutional business experienced total 
net out�ows of N$1.1 billion over the �nancial year, primarily 
due to the rebalancing of client portfolios in order to comply 
with regulatory requirements. �e impacts of these out�ows 
have been moderated by stronger investment performance due 
to our portfolios being able to bene�t from the strong rally in 
markets worldwide.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Against a backdrop of tough economic conditions, our market 
share of retail assets saw a slight decline to 4.3% (2016: 4.6%). 
Notwithstanding the above, net outflows for the period were 

much lower compared to the prior year at N$198 million (2016: 
N$806 million). We remain one of Namibia’s foremost third-
party unit trust managers, with assets of N$2.2 billion under 
management (2016: N$2.3 billion).

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Having made enquiry of fellow directors and the Group’s auditors, 
each director con�rms that to the best of his/her knowledge 
and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation 
of their report of which the Group’s auditors are unaware. Each 
director also con�rms that he/she has taken all the steps ought 
to have been taken as a director in order to make him or herself 
aware of the relevant audit information and to establish that the 
Group’s auditors are aware of the information. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

The directors, via the Audit Committee, specifically engaged 
with the external auditors with respect to the key audit matters 
that were raised in their report set out on pages 30 to 31. The 
Audit Committee considered the work performed in addressing 
those matters and is satisfied that sufficient audit evidence was 
obtained by the external auditors to conclude that the matters 
had been dealt with appropriately in terms of the correct unit 
trust fund fees and segregated fund fees to be processed and 
recognised as revenue. The Audit Committee is satisfied that 
the internal controls that management implemented in this 
regard are sufficient to mitigate this risk.

GOING CONCERN

We believe, after making enquiries that we consider to be ap-
propriate, that the Company and the Group have adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the fore-

seeable future. For this reason we continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the �nancial statements.

SHAREHOLDING

Details of all shareholders, including interests held by directors 
in office as at 30 September 2017, are listed in the analysis of 
shareholders on page 18 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY

The Group’s corporate governance and sustainability reporting 
is presented on pages 19 to 25.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After year-end the Board recommended a normal dividend 
of 7.5 cents per ordinary share (2016: 7.5 cents per ordinary  
share). The salient dates are as follows:

Last day to trade: 24 November 2017 
ex – dividend: 27 November 2017
Record date: 01 December 2017
Payment date: 18 December 2017

These events have no impact on the financial statements and 
no other events have occurred subsequent to the reporting 
date that would have materially altered the results reported.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

The AGM of the Company will be held at Unit 18, Tenbergen 
Village, Corner of Robert Mugabe and Lazarett Street, on 23 
February 2018. Refer to the notice of the AGM on page 77 of 
this publication for further details.
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DIRECTORS

The directors as at 30 September 2017 were:

DIRECTOR POSITION FIRST APPOINTED RE-ELECTED TO BE RE-ELECTED AT NEXT AGM

Anton Pillay* Chairman & Non-Executive 20-Feb-09 24-Feb-17 -

Gordon Young* Independent  Non-Executive 01-Sep-01 24-Feb-17 -

Eino Emvula Chief Executive Officer 01-Dec-10 - -

Aimee Rhoda* Non-Executive 01-Mar-13 24-Feb-17 -

Birgit Rossouw Independent  Non-Executive 30-Nov-06 26-Feb-16 23-Feb-18

Schalk Walters Independent  Non-Executive 01-Mar-12 26-Feb-16 23-Feb-18

Elize Angula Independent  Non-Executive 01-Mar-12 26-Feb-16 23-Feb-18

Tarah Shaanika Independent  Non-Executive 01-Apr-15 26-Feb-16 -

Ulrich Eiseb Chief Financial Officer 01-Oct-14 -
-

*South African 

EINO EMVULA
Chief Executive Officer

ANTON PILLAY
Chairman
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STATEMENTS 
OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION

Notes  GROUP  COMPANY
 2017  2016  2017  2016

ASSETS  N$  N$  N$  N$

NON-CURRENT ASSETS  7,833,530  7,723,605  8,726,090    8,643,530 

Equipment 2  905,970  1,002,989  905,970  1,002,989 
Intangible assets 3  6,241  10,628  6,241  10,628 
Interest in subsidiaries 4 - -  6,000,000  6,000,000 
Marketable securities - statutory investments 5  5,000,000  5,000,000 - -
Deferred tax 6 1,921,319  1,709,988  1,813,879  1,629,913 

CURRENT ASSETS  37,794,391  38,978,897  27,018,424  26,871,995 

Marketable securities - additional investments 5   3,663,339  4,532,909 - -
Trade and other receivables 7  11,971,534  12,159,239  10,023,918  10,191,215 
Amounts owing by Group companies 4 - -  1,205,643  931,204 
Current tax asset 19.2 486,933  746,921  257,470  367,935 
Cash and cash equivalents 19.4  21,672,585  21,539,828  15,531,393  15,381,641 
TOTAL ASSETS 45,627,921  46,702,502  35,744,514  35,515,525 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS 24,382,146  23,198,739  23,871,827  22,024,079 

Issued capital and share premium 8  3,794,152  3,794,152  4,053,960  4,053,960 
Reserve for own shares 9  (9,579,250)   (9,579,250) - -
Share-based payment reserve 14.3  2,518,532  1,852,370  2,518,532  1,852,370 
Fair value reserve  1,851,919  1,657,454 - -
Retained earnings  25,796,793  25,474,013  17,299,335  16,117,749 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  7,318,415   8,756,022 - -
Interest-bearing liabilities 14.4  7,318,415  8,756,022 - -

CURRENT LIABILITIES  13,927,360  14,747,741  11,872,687  13,491,446 

Shareholders for dividend 19.3  117,341  368,192  117,341  368,192 
Trade and other payables 11  13,810,019  14,379,549  9,811,237  11,691,003 
Amounts owing to Group companies 10 - -  1,944,109  1,432,251 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  45,627,921  46,702,502  35,744,514  35,515,525 

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER
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STATEMENTS OF 
COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  

30 SEPTEMBER

NOTES  GROUP  COMPANY

 2017  2016  2017  2016
 N$  N$  N$  N$

Revenue 12  69,582,765  72,403,774  53,161,076  53,282,393 

Other income 13  621,220  272,646  672,000  228,661 

Operating expenditure 14  (49,723,099)  (50,769,202)  (38,467,529)  (38,675,449) 

Operating pro�t  20,480,886  21,907,218  15,365,547  14,835,605 

Net �nance income  1,572,329  1,565,386  6,002,230  5,616,505 

Finance income 15  2,189,405  1,921,408  6,002,230  5,616,505 
Finance cost 16  (617,076)  ( 356,022)  -    - 

Pro�t before tax  22,053,215  23,472,604  21,367,777  20,452,110 

Income tax 17  (7,105,005)  (7,710,783)  (5,186,191)  (5,046,786) 

Pro�t attributable to ordinary shareholders  14,948,210  15,761,821  16,181,586  15,405,324 

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassi�ed to pro�t or loss
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale �nancial asset  194,465  224,586  -    - 

Other comprehensive income for the year  194,465  224,586  -    - 

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity holders  15,142,675  15,986,407  16,181,586  15,405,324 

EARNINGS PER SHARE (cents)

 - Basic 18  9.69 10.22  8.09 7.70
 - Diluted 18  9.34 9.81  8.09 7.70
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Notes
Ordinary 

share capital 
N$

Share
premium

N$

Retained
earnings

N$

Share-based
payment reserve

N$

Reserve for
own shares

N$

Fair value
reserve

N$
Total 

N$
GROUP
Balance at 1 October 2015 1,962,300  2,251,860  24,612,741  1,435,154  (1,599,258)  1,432,868  30,095,665 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    15,761,821  -    -    224,586  15,986,407 
Pro�t for the year  -    -    15,761,821  -    -    -    15,761,821 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    224,586  224,586 

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity  (420,008)  -    (14,900,549)  417,216  (7,979,992)  -    (22,883,333) 
Contributions and distributions
Dividend paid to equity holders

 -    -    (14,900,549)  -    -    -    (14,900,549) 

Share based payments  -    -    -    417,216  -    -    417,216 
Acquisition of NAM shares by the Orban Street Trust 14.3  (420,008)  -    -    -    (7,979,992)  -    (8,400,000) 

Balance at 30 September 2016  1,542,292  2,251,860  25,474,013  1,852,370  (9,579,250)  1,657,454  23,198,739 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    14,948,210  -    -    194,465  15,142,675 
Pro�t for the year  -    -    14,948,210  -    -    -    14,948,210 
Other comprehensive income for the year

 -    -    -    -    -    194,465  194,465 

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity  -    -    (14,625,430)  666,162  -    -    (13,959,268) 
Contributions and distributions
Dividend paid to equity holders

 -    -    (14,625,430)  -    -    -    (14,625,430) 

Share based payments  -    -    -    666,162  -    -    666,162 

Balance at 30 September 2017  1,542,292  2,251,860  25,796,793  2,518,532  (9,579,250)  1,851,919  24,382,146 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER

GROUP
Balance at 1 October 2015

Comprehensive income for the year
Pro�t for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity
Contributions and distributions
Dividend paid to equity holders
Share-based payments
Acquisition of NAM shares by the Orban Street Trust

Balance at 30 September 2016

Comprehensive income for the year
Pro�t for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity
Contributions and distributions
Dividend paid to equity holders
Share-based payments

Balance at 30 September 2017

 (14,900,549)  (14,900,549) 

(14,625,430)  (14,625,430)- - - - - 
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Notes
Ordinary 

share capital 
N$

Share
premium

N$

Retained
earnings

N$

Share-based
payment reserve

N$

Fair value
reserve

N$
Total 

N$
COMPANY

Balance at 1 October 2015  2,000,000  2,053,960  15,712,425  1,435,154  -    21,201,539 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    15,405,324  -    -    15,405,324 
Pro�t for the year  -    -    15,405,324  -    -    15,405,324 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity 
Contributions and distributions

 -    -    (15,000,000)  417,216  -    (14,582,784) 

Share-based payments 14.3  -    -    -    417,216  -    417,216 
Dividend paid to equity holders  -    -    (15,000,000)  -    -    (15,000,000) 

Balance at 30 September 2016  2,000,000  2,053,960  16,117,749  1,852,370  -    22,024,079 

Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    16,181,586  -    -    16,181,586 
Pro�t for the year  -    -    16,181,586  -    -    16,181,586 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Transactions with owners recorded directly to equity 
Contributions and distributions

 -    -    (15,000,000)  666,162  -    (14,333,838) 

Share-based payments  -    -    -    666,162  -    666,162 
Dividend paid to equity holders  -    -    (15,000,000)  -    -    (15,000,000) 

Balance at 30 September 2017  2,000,000  2,053,960  17,299,335  2,518,532  -    23,871,827 
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GROUP COMPANY
Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers  70,391,692  73,472,934  54,000,375  53,115,654 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (49,363,455)  (64,907,301)  (39,418,121)  (49,617,704) 
Cash generated from operating activities 19.1  21,028,237  8,565,633  14,582,254  3,497,950 
Interest income  1,807,498  1,508,662  6,002,229  5,616,504 
Income taxes paid 19.2  (7,056,349)  (8,299,586)  (5,259,692)  (5,392,665) 
Dividends paid 19.3  (14,876,281)  (14,837,804)  (15,250,851)  (14,958,706) 

Net cash �ows from operating activities  903,105  (13,063,095)  73,940  (11,236,917) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of equipment to maintain operations 2  (161,607)  (957,354)  (161,607)  (957,354) 
Proceeds from the sale of equipment  -  3,800  -  3,800 
Marketable securities - withdrawals  3,836,842  23,633,873  -  - 
Marketable securities (investments)  (2,390,900)  (23,402,340)  -  - 

Net cash �ows from investing activities  1,284,335  (722,021)  (161,607)  (953,554) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings  (1,579,335)  -  -   -  
Interest paid on interest bearing borrowings  (475,348)  -  -   -  
(Payments to)/Receipts from Group companies  -  - 237,419  1,752,115

Net cash �ows from �nancing activities  (2,054,683)  -  237,419  1,752,115 

NET MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  132,757  (13,785,116)  149,752  (10,438,356) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  21,539,828  35,324,944  15,381,641  25,819,997 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 19.4  21,672,585  21,539,828  15,531,393  15,381,641 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 REPORTING ENTITY

Namibia Asset Management Limited, (“the Company”), is a 
Company domiciled in Namibia (Registration number: 97/397). 
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 30 September 2017 comprise the Company, 
its subsidiary and other entities controlled by the Company, 
together referred to as the “Group”.

There are no differences between the accounting policies of 
the Group and its subsidiaries. Where reference is made to the 
Group, it should apply to the Company as the context requires.

1.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and in the manner required by the Namibian Companies 
Act 28 of 2004.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on 18 December 2017.

1.3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

(i) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which 
control is transferred to the Group. A business is defined as 
an integrated set of activities and assets that are capable of 
being conducted and managed for the purposes of providing 

a return. It is presumed that a business exists if goodwill is 
present in the acquired set of assets and activities. Evidence to 
the contrary would be needed to overcome this presumption.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
• �e fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
• �e recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in 

the acquiree; plus
• �e fair value (if the business combination is achieved in 

stages) of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree; less
• �e net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the iden-

ti�able assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recog-
nised immediately in profit or loss.

�e consideration transferred does not include amounts related 
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts 
generally are recognised in pro�t or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of 
debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection 
with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at 
the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classi�ed 
as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted 
for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value 
of the contingent consideration are recognised in pro�t or loss.

When share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are 
required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s em-
ployees (acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services, then all 
or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards 

is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the 
business combination. �is determination is based on the market-
based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-
based value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the 
replacement awards relate to past and/or future services.

(ii) Subsidiaries

�e consolidated annual �nancial statements include the assets, 
liabilities and results of the operations of the holding company 
and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are all companies and structured entities over which 
the Group has control. �e Group has control over an investee 
when the Group is exposed, or has the rights to, variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
a�ect those returns through its power over the investee.

When assessing whether control exists the Group considers 
all existing substantive rights that result in the current ability 
to direct relevant activities. Subsidiaries are consolidated 
from the date on which the Group acquires effective control. 
Consolidation is discontinued from the date that control over 
the subsidiary ceases.

The Group consolidates a structured entity when the substance 
of the relationship between the Group and the structured entity 
indicates that the Group controls the structured entity.

(iii) Consolidated structured entities

The Group assesses whether it has control over structured 
enti ties in terms of IFRS 10. Where the Group has control over 
a structured entity, it is consolidated in terms of IFRS 10.
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(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses 
arising from intra-Group transactions, are eliminated in pre-
paring the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses 
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to 
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(v)  Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets 
and liabilities of the subsidiary/structured entity, any non- 
controlling interests and other components of equity related 
to the subsidiary/structured entity. Any surplus or deficit ari-
sing on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the 
Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such 
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is 
lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted 
investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending 
on the level of influence retained.

1.4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for the following items in the 
Statement of Financial Position:
• Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

are measured at fair value; and
• Available-for-sale �nancial assets are measured at fair value.

1.5 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consolidated and separate financial statements are 
presented in Namibia Dollar, which is the functional currency 
of all the entities in the Group. All figures disclosed in this 
publication of the annual financial statements are rounded 
to the nearest dollar.

1.6  KEY MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with 
IFRS, requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

�e estimates and associated assumptions are based on his-
torical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. Actual results may di�er from these estimates. �e 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
a�ects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision a�ects both current and future periods.

Key areas in which judgement is applied include:
• Valuation of the share-based payment expense where inputs 

are based on observable market inputs, adjusted for factors 
that speci�cally apply to the transaction and recognising 
market volatility.

• Assessing whether the Group controls an investee by as-
sessing the power over the investee, exposure or rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with its investee and 
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the 
amount of the Group.

1.7 FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions

�e Group deals occasionally with South African counterparts 
and converts to Namibia Dollar at the prescribed conversion 
rate at the dates of transactions. �e Namibia Dollar and the 
South African Rand are pegged at 1:1. �e Group does not have 
any signi�cant foreign currency transactions.

1.8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Non-derivative financial assets
�e Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the dates 
that they are originated. All other �nancial assets (including 
assets designated at fair value through pro�t or loss) are re-
cognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that the 
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

�e Group derecognises a �nancial asset when the contractual 
rights to the cash �ows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash �ows on the �nancial asset 
in a transaction in which, substantially, all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the �nancial asset are transferred. Any interest 
in transferred �nancial assets that is created or retained by the 
Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
presented in the statement of financial position when, and 
only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the 
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial 
assets.
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(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or 
loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated as 
such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated 
at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such 
investments and makes purchase and sales decisions based on 
their fair value in accordance with the Group’s documented risk 
management or investment strategy. Attributable transaction 
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair 
value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Marketable securities relating to additional investments are 
classi�ed as �nancial assets through pro�t or loss. Additional 
investments relate to dividends and income earned on statutory 
investments which are reinvested.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale �nancial assets are non-derivative �nancial 
assets that are designated as available for sale or are not clas-
si�ed in any of the other categories of �nancial assets. Available-
for-sale �nancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus 
any directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value 
and changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign 
currency di�erences on available-for-sale debt instruments, are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the 
fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognised, 
the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassi�ed to pro�t 
or loss.

Statutory investments refer to the Unit Trust Management 
Company’s investment in its own unit trusts as required by 
the Unit Trusts Control Act 54 of 1981. The investments are 
shown at the quoted unit price at year end. 

Market value adjustments are recognised directly in other com-
prehensive income.

Marketable securities relating to statutory investments are 
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are �nancial assets with �xed or de-
terminable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the 
e�ective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade 
and other receivables and amounts owing by Group companies.

The cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity period of three 
months or less. They include highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are used 
by the Group in the management of short-term commitments. 
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and 
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

(iv) Non-derivative financial liabilities

�e Group recognises debt securities issued and subordinated 
liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other �nancial 
liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the 
date the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its con-
tractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the 
other financial liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are 
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

Other �nancial liabilities comprise amounts owing to Group 
companies, trade and other payable interest-bearing liabilities 
and shareholders for dividends.

1.9 EQUIPMENT
1.9.1 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

When parts of an item of equipment have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items of equipment. 
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the 
related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

(ii) Subsequent costs

�e Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of 
equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when 
that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic 
bene�ts embodied in the item will �ow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. �e costs of the day-
to-day servicing of equipment are recognised in pro�t or loss 
as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual 
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value. Signi�cant components of individual assets are assessed 
and if a component has a useful life that is di�erent from the re-
mainder of the assets, that component is depreciated separately.

Items of equipment are depreciated from the date that they 
are installed and are available for use in the location and con-
dition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item 
of equipment. The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows:

• Furniture and equipment 5 years
• Computer equipment 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reassessed at the reporting date, and adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Disposals

�e gain or loss on disposal on an item of equipment is de-
termined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of the equipment, and is recognised net within 
other income/other expenses in pro�t or loss.

1.9.2 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Leasehold improvements are all improvements made to pro-
perty which the Group leases under an operating lease in 
order to prepare the property for its intended use and from 
which the Group is expected to benefit for more than one year. 
Leasehold improvements are capitalised as part of equipment. 
The improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term or its useful life.

1.10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(i) Software

Computer software and licences are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Such 
assets are recognised if, and only if, it is probable that the 
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to 
these assets will flow to the entity, and the cost of the asset 
can be measured reliably.

The useful life of computer software and licenses is finite. The 
Group considers the useful life of these assets to be 3 years and 
amortises them accordingly on a straight-line basis in profit 
or loss, from the date they are available for use. Amortisation 
methods and useful lives are reassessed at each reporting date, 
and adjusted where appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is only capitalised if it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Group. The carrying amount of an item of equipment 
is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic be-
nefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
on derecognition, determined as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, 
is recognised in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

(ii) Trademark

�e asset management operations and trademark were acquired 
in 2006 as a going concern with the intention of gro wing the asset 
management business inde�nitely. �e value of the trademark has 
been assessed on the existing client base and the future income 
to be generated. It is management’s intention to grow the client 
base and the business inde�nitely through maximising marketing 
and competitive trends and by taking advantage of any brand 
extension opportunities. �e trademark is expected to contribute 
to the Group’s net cash in�ows inde�nitely. �e trademark is 

therefore not amortised and is tested for impairment annually 
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. 
A review is performed at the end of each reporting period to 
ascertain whether events and circumstances still support the 
useful life assessment of the asset.

1.11 IMPAIRMENT

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss 
is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there 
is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is 
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event had 
a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that 
asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity se-
curities) are impaired can include default or delinquency by a 
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms 
that the Group would not consider otherwise, indications that 
a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the 
payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Group, economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of 
an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment 
in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its 
fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

(ii) Loans and receivables

The Group considers evidence of impairment of loans and 
receivables at both a specific asset and collective level. All 
individually significant receivables are assessed for specific 
impairment. All individually significant loans and receivables 
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively 
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not 
yet identified. Loans and receivables that are not individually 
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping 
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together loans and receivables with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical 
trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries 
and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s 
judgement as to whether current economic and credit con-
ditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater 
or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a �nancial asset measured 
at amortised cost is calculated as the di�erence between its 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future 
cash �ows discounted at the asset’s original e�ective interest 
rate. Losses are recognised in pro�t or loss and re�ected in an 
allowance account against loans and receivables. Interest on the 
impaired asset continues to be recognised. When a subsequent 
event (e.g. repayment by a debtor) causes the amount of im-
pairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through pro�t or loss.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale �nancial assets are 
recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair 
value reserve in other comprehensive income to pro�t or loss. 
�e cumulative loss that is reclassi�ed from other comprehensive 
income to pro�t or loss is the di�erence between the acquisition 
cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the 
current fair value, less any impairment loss recognised previously 
in pro�t or loss. Changes in cumulative impairment losses at-
tributable to application of the e�ective interest method are 
re�ected as a component of interest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available- 
for-sale debt security increases and the increase can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognised in profit or loss, then the impairment loss is 
reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profit 

or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of 
any impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised 
in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is 
any indication that an asset (excluding deferred tax assets) 
may be impaired. The recoverable amount, being the higher of 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is determined for 
any asset for which an indication of impairment is identified. 
For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or 
that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is 
estimated at each reporting date. If the recoverable amount 
of an asset is less than its carrying value, the carrying value of 
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped 
together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash 
in�ows from continuing use that are largely independent of 
cash in�ows of other assets or groups of assets (the ’cash ge-
nerating unit’). If there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount 
for the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs will be determined. 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of 
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated re-
coverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised as an expense in profit or loss 
in the period in which they are identified. An impairment loss 
in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, 
reversal of impairment losses is recognised in profit or loss 
in the period in which the reversal is identified, to the extent 
that the asset is not increased to a carrying value higher than 
it would have been had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset in prior years.

1.12 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

The Company measures its investment in subsidiary at cost 
less impairments, if any.

1.13 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs di-
rectly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are re cognised 
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(ii) Dividends

Ordinary dividends are recognised as a liability in the period 
in which they are declared.

(iii)  Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (trea-
sury shares)

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the 
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly 
attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a 
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as 
treasury shares and are presented in reserve for own shares. 
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the 
amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and 
the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented 
in share premium.

(iv) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change 
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets until the 
assets are derecognised or impaired.
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(v) Share-based payment reserve

�e share-based payment reserve comprises the accumulation of 
equity-settled share-based payment costs as the related service 
conditions are being met.

1.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Defined contribution plans

A de�ned contribution plan is a post-employment bene�t plan 
under which an entity pays �xed contributions into a separate 
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to de�ned con-
tribution pension plans are recognised as an employee bene�t 
expense in pro�t or loss as the related service is provided. 
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value for share-based payment awards 
granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, 
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that 
the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. 
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect 
the number of awards for which the related service and non- 
market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that 
the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on 
the number of awards that meet the related service and non-
market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-
based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-
date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to 
reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences 
between expected and actual outcomes.

(iii) Short-term benefits

Short-term benefit obligations are measured on an un dis-
counted basis and are expensed as the related service is pro-
vided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid under short-term cash-bonus or profit-sharing plans if the 
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

1.15 REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group’s revenue comprises the Namibia Dollar amount in 
respect of the following:
• Fees from segregated fund management activities; and
• Fees from unit trust management activities.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in pro�t or loss 
over the term that the services are provided and calculated 
based on the AUM. No revenue is recognised if there are sig-
ni�cant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration 
due and associated costs.

1.16 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested 
(including available-for-sale financial assets), dividend income, 
gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and 
fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or 
loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is 
recognised in profit or loss on the date the Company’s right to 
receive payments is established which, in the case of quoted 
securities, is the declaration date.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, losses 
on the disposal of available-for-sale �nancial assets and fair value 
losses on �nancial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss.

1.17 INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income 
tax expense is recognised in pro�t or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised 
directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income 
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary di�erences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for �-
nancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following tem-
porary di�erences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in 
a transaction that is not a business combination and that a�ects 
neither accounting nor taxable pro�t upon initial recognition 
and temporary di�erences associated with investments in sub-
sidiaries if both the following conditions are satis�ed: 

a) The parent, investor, joint venturer or joint operator is able 
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; 
and

b) it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be 
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based 
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they 
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused 
tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are de-
termined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary 
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is 
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future 
taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary 
differences, are considered, based on the business plans for 
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of 
future taxable profits improves. [IAS 12.56]

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is pro-
bable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realised.

1.18 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group presents basic, diluted and headline earnings per 
share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by 

adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which 
comprise convertible notes and share options granted to em-
ployees. Headline EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding with separately 
identifiable re-measurements net of related taxes.

1.19 SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages 
in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Group’s other components.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised in 
one operating segment – asset management. This division is 
the basis on which the Group reports all its results. Therefore, 
a separate Segment Report is not prepared. All the Group’s 
operations are located in Namibia.

The chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer 
of the Group.

1.20 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the determination of fair value for financial assets and 
liabilities. When applicable, further information about the 
assumptions made in determining fair value is disclosed in 
the notes specific to that asset or liability.

“ Our investment philosophy is  

deeply ingrained in our culture. ”
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

2. EQUIPMENT

Computer 
Equipment

N$ 

Furniture &
Equipment

N$

Leasehold
Improvements

N$
Total 

N$

Group and company 2017

Cost
Opening balance  742,306  645,743  713,836  2,101,885 

Additions  38,603  28,385  94,619  161,607 

Closing balance  780,909  674,128  808,455  2,263,492 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Opening balance  684,623  402,376  11,897  1,098,896 

Depreciation  45,855  68,965  143,806  258,626 

Closing balance  730,478  471,341  155,703  1,357,522 

Carrying amount

Balance at 30 September 2017  50,431  202,787  652,752  905,970 

Balance at 30 September 2016  57,683  243,367  701,939  1,002,989 

Computer 
Equipment

N$ 

Furniture &
Equipment

N$

Leasehold
Improvements

N$
Total 

N$
Group and company 2016

Cost
Opening balance  682,225  495,070  -  1,177,295 
Additions  60,081  170,265  713,836  944,182 
Disposals  -  (19,592)  (19,592) 

Closing balance  742,306  645,743  713,836  2,101,885 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Opening balance  623,294  362,451  -  985,745 
Depreciation  61,329  59,517  11,897  132,743 
Disposals  -  (19,592)  -  (19,592) 

Closing balance  684,623  402,376  11,897  1,098,896 

Carrying amount

Balance at 30 September 2016  57,683  243,367  701,939  1,002,989 

Balance at 30 September 2015  58,931  132,619  -  191,550 

There was no equipment pledged as security for liabilities and no contractual obligations for the acquisition of equipment at year end.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software &  
Software Licences

N$
Total

N$

Group 2017

Cost

Opening balance  101,888  101,888 
Additions  -  - 

Closing balance  101,888  101,888 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Opening balance  91,260  91,260 
Amortisation  4,387  4,387

Closing balance  95,647  95,647 

Carrying amount

Balance at 30 September 2017  6,241  6,241

Balance at 30 September 2016  10,628  10,628 

Software &  
Software Licences

N$
Total

N$

Group 2016

Cost

Opening balance  88,716  88,716 
Additions  13,172  13,172 

Closing balance  101,888  101,888 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Opening balance  77,986  77,986 
Amortisation  13,274  13,274 

Closing balance  91,260  91,260 

Carrying amount

Balance at 30 September 2016  10,628  10,628 

Balance at 30 September 2015  10,730  10,730 

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7

A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S   /   4 7



NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Trademark

N$

Software &  
Software Licences

N$
Total

N$
Company 2017

Cost

Opening balance  4,000,000  101,888  4,101,888 
Additions  -    -    -   

Closing balance  4,000,000  101,888  4,101,888 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Opening balance  4,000,000  91,260  4,091,260 
Amortisation  -    4,387  4,387 

Closing balance  4,000,000  95,647  4,095,647 

Carrying amount

Balance at 30 September 2017  -    6,241  6,241 

Balance at 30 September 2016  -    10,628  10,628 

Trademark
N$

Software &  
Software Licences

N$
Total

N$

Company 2016

Cost

Opening balance  4,000,000  88,716  4,088,716 
Additions  -    13,172  13,172 

Closing balance  4,000,000  101,888  4,101,888 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Opening balance  4,000,000  77,986  4,077,986 
Amortisation  -    13,274  13,274 

Closing balance  4,000,000  91,260  4,091,260 

Carrying amount

Balance at 30 September 2016  -    10,628  10,628 

Balance at 30 September 2015  -    10,730  10,730 

The Trademark was impaired during 2008 due to the fact that it was impossible to predict what e�ect the international �nancial crisis may have on the future pro�tability of the Company. 

There are no restrictions on the title of intangible assets, nor are there any contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

4. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY

2017 
N$

2016
N$

Shares

Opening balance  6,000,000  6,000,000 

Closing balance  6,000,000  6,000,000 

Consisting of:

Shares at cost  6,574,536  6,574,536 
Cumulative impairment  (574,536)  (574,536) 

 6,000,000  6,000,000 

Intercompany current accounts (interest-free)

Orban Street Trust  1,205,643  931,204 

Amounts due by Group companies  1,205,643  931,204 

Intercompany loans are repayable on demand and carry no interest. Refer to note 21.2 for a listing of our Group entities, including the ownership structures. There are no non-controlling 
shareholders and the Group exercises full control over these entities as envisaged under IFRS 10.
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GROUP

5. MARKETABLE SECURITIES
2017 

N$
2016

N$

Statutory investments  5,000,000  5,000,000 
Additional investments  3,663,339  4,532,909 

 8,663,339  9,532,909 

Directors' valuation  8,663,339  9,532,909 

Classi�ed as:
Current  3,663,339  4,532,909 
Non-current  5,000,000  5,000,000 

 8,663,339  9,532,909 

Net gains / (loss) on �nancial assets held at fair value through pro�t or loss  381,907  412,746 

The statutory investments relate to the minimum investment a Unit Trust Manager is required to make in its own Unit Trust as per the Unit Trust Control Act of 1981. They are 
classi�ed as available-for-sale �nancial assets and are shown at their fair value which is based on actual unit prices at year end. The additional investments relate to dividends 
and interest earned and reinvested into the funds together with capital growth thereon.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

NAM Coronation Strategic Income Fund 

Number of units held at year end
 - 30 September 2016  1,000,000 

 - 30 September 2017  1,000,000 

Unit price at year end in cents
 - 30 September 2016  115.59 

 - 30 September 2017  117.21 

NAM Coronation Balanced Defensive Fund 

Number of units held at year end
 - 30 September 2016  35,682 

 - 30 September 2017  35,682 

Unit price at year end in cents
 - 30 September 2016  4,232.59 

 - 30 September 2017  4,358.22 

NAM Coronation Capital Plus Fund

Number of units held at year end
 - 30 September 2016  1,000,000 

 - 30 September 2017  1,000,000 

Unit price at year end in cents
 - 30 September 2016 169.51

 - 30 September 2017 175.62
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GROUP

2017 
N$

2016
N$

NAM Coronation Balanced Plus Fund
Number of units held at year end
 - 30 September 2016  1,001,894 

 - 30 September 2017  1,001,894 

Unit price at year end in cents
 - 30 September 2016  161,47 

 - 30 September 2017  168,70 

NAM Coronation Money Market Fund
Number of units held at year end
 - 30 September 2016  1,000,000 

 - 30 September 2017  1,000,000 

Unit price at year end in cents
 - 30 September 2016  100,00 

 - 30 September 2017  100,00 

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

6. DEFERRED TAX

GROUP 
2017 

N$
2016 

N$

COMPANY 
2017 

N$
2016 

N$

Opening balance  1,709,988  1,828,325  1,629,913  1,525,493 
Temporary di�erences  211,331  (118,337)  183,966  104,420 

Closing balance  1,921,319  1,709,988  1,813,879  1,629,913 

The balance of deferred tax is made up as follows:

Deferred tax liability
Equipment  (167,793)  (113,960)  (167,793)  (113,960) 
Intangible assets  (1,997)  (3,401)  (1,997)  (3,401) 

 (169,790)  (117,361)  (169,790)  (117,361) 

Deferred tax assets recognised
Provision for leave pay  50,982  50,488  41,200  44,653 
Bonus provision  937,600  788,160  846,720  713,920 
Deferred rental costs  26,791  -  20,013  - 
Trademark  686,221  737,421  686,221  737,421 
Share-based payments  221,995  -  221,995  - 
Restraint of trade payments  167,520  251,280  167,520  251,280 

 2,091,109  1,827,349  1,983,669  1,747,274 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
pro�ts will be available against which the asset can be utilised. No unrecognised deferred 
tax liabilities exist.
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GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables  11,249,112  11,427,972  9,504,563  9,713,545 
Prepayments  138,306  125,890  122,281  109,865 
Other receivables  584,116  605,377  397,074  367,805 

 11,971,534  12,159,239  10,023,918  10,191,215 

8. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Authorised – Ordinary shares

300 000 000 shares of 1c each  3,000,000  3,000,000  3,000,000  3,000,000 

Issued – Ordinary shares
200 000 000 shares of 1c each  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Share premium
Opening and closing balance  2,251,860  2,251,860  2,053,960  2,053,960 

Reserve for own shares
Shares held by the NAM Sta� Share Scheme ("scheme")
(Refer to note 9)  (37,700)  (37,700)  -  - 
Shares held by The Orban Street Trust ("OST") (Refer to note 9)  (420,008)  (420,008)  -  - 

Total share capital including share premium  3,794,152  3,794,152  4,053,960  4,053,960 

      
The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 23 February 2018. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive 
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share on meetings of the Company.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

9. RESERVE FOR OWN SHARES
On initial recognition or a change of shares held by the scheme or OST, share capital is adjusted by the par value of the change in shares, while the remainder of the strike price of the option/
treasure share is recognised as part of the reserve for own shares. All subsequent changes in share price are recognised in the reserve for own shares. On 30 September 2017, the scheme 
owned 3 770 000 shares (2016: 3 770 000) whereas OST had 42 000 800 shares (2016: 42 000 800).

GROUP COMPANY
2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$
Share capital

Total number of shares in issue at par value of 1c  2,382,308  1,962,300  2,000,000  2,000,000 
Change in shares owned by OST during the year  -  420,008  -  -   

 2,382,308  2,382,308  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Consisting of:

Issued share capital  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000  2,000,000 
Cumulative par value of shares held by the scheme at 
beginning of year

 (37,700)  (37,700)  -  -   

Cumulative par value of shares held by OST at beginning of 
year

 (420,008)  (420,008) 

Share capital at end of year  1,542,292  1,542,292  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Reserve for own shares

Owned by the schemes at beginning of the �nancial year  9,579,250  1,599,258 
Change in shares owned by the scheme and OST during the 
year

 -  7,979,992 

Owned by the schemes at end of the �nancial year  9,579,250  9,579,250 
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

12. REVENUE
Revenue comprises the following:
 - Unit trust fund fees  16,421,689  19,121,381  -  - 
 - Segregated fund fees  53,161,076  53,282,393  53,161,076  53,282,393 

 69,582,765  72,403,774  53,161,076  53,282,393 

13. OTHER INCOME

Administration fees  -  -  180,000  180,000 
Pro�t on sale of equipment  -  3,800  -  3,800 
Unit trust fund distributions  121,736  106,158  41,520  39,861 
Commission and other income  499,484  162,688  450,480  5,000 

 621,220  272,646  672,000  228,661 

GROUP COMPANY
2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$
10. AMOUNT OWING TO GROUP COMPANIES

NAM Sta� Share Scheme  1,603,618  1,100,371 
Namibia Unit Trust Managers Limited  340,491  331,880 

 1,944,109  1,432,251 

These loans are interest-free with no �xed repayment terms.
Refer to note 21 for details of relationships with these Group entities.

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Coronation Fund Managers Limited 8,192,835  7,782,494 6,259,169  6,232,572 
Deferred rental costs  83,723  -    62,542  -   
Accruals 2,527,863  3,191,030 777,319  2,302,641 
Bonus and leave provision  3,089,321  3,406,025 2,774,749  3,155,790 

 13,810,019  14,379,549  9,811,237  11,691,003 

The following amounts due to related parties are included 
 in trade payables:
E. Emvula (Director) – bonus and restraint of trade accruals  1,408,000  1,631,050  1,408,000  1,631,050 
U. Eiseb (Director) – bonus and restraint of trade accruals  662,000  939,200  662,000  939,200 
Coronation Fund Managers Limited – fees and disbursements 8,192,835 7,782,494 6,259,169 6,232,572
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GROUP COMPANY
2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$

14. OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Operating expenditure includes the following:

14.1. EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration  -   
Audit fees     

- current year  369,135  331,522  263,718  234,945
- (over) / underprovision  244,101  60,398  192,305  47,438 
- Other services  -    71,601  -    71,601

 613,236  463,521  456,023  353,984 
Depreciation

- Computer equipment  45,855  61,329  45,855  61,329 
- Furniture and equipment  68,965  59,517  68,965  59,517 
- Leasehold improvements  143,806  11,897  143,806  11,897 

 258,626  132,743  258,626  132,743 

Amortisation charge  

- Software 4,387 13,274 4,387 13,274 

Operating lease expense
- Equipment  53,967  71,000  53,967  66,442 
- Premises  858,315  660,947  645,058  498,004 

 912,282  731,947  699,025  564,446 

Short-term employee bene�ts
- Salaries and wages  2,998,533 3,402,860  2,401,947  2,866,788 
- Bonuses  3,130,000  2,170,902  2,646,000  2,231,001 
- Contributions to retirement funds  251,378  213,281  205,624  184,818 
-  Share-based payments charge (refer to 

note 14.3)  666,162  613,554  666,162  613,554 

- Medical aid contributions  270,574  209,261  153,942  127,134 

 7,316,647 6,609,858  6,073,675  6,023,295 

Professional and consulting fees – Technical services  188,682  439,333  183,020  289,297 
Portfolio management fees – Coronation Fund Managers  32,466,667  33,894,318  24,858,846  25,003,315 

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

14. OPERATING EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)  

14.2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Non-executive directors

Paid by the Company
In the capacity as:

Director
Audit 

Committee
Remuneration

Committee
Total
2017

Total
2016

Meetings held:

G. Young  85,230  -    27,610  112,840  91,980 
B. Rossouw  85,230  33,999  8,500  127,729  114,030 
S. Walters  85,230  44,940  -    130,170  126,630 
E. Angula  76,730  -    8,500  85,230  77,280 
T. Shaanika  85,230  -    -    85,230  84,630 

 417,650  78,939  44,610  541,199  494,550 

Basic
Salary Bonuses

Provident Fund
Contributions 

Deferred 
Remuneration 

and Other
Restraint

of Trade Total

Executive directors
Paid by the Company

2017
E. Emvula  769,700  1,408,000  57,728  186,848  -    2,422,276 
U. Eiseb  649,442  662,000  48,708  217,273  -    1,577,423 

2016
E. Emvula  792,947  1,150,000  58,757  186,929  481,050  2,669,683 
U. Eiseb  663,198  635,000  49,740  215,576  304,200  1,867,714 

14.3. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
14.3.1 NAM STAFF SHARE SCHEME
The Company’s Share Purchase Scheme has been in existence since 1998 as part of the restructuring process of the Group and over the years, the scheme purchased 13 120 000 
Namibia Asset Management Ltd shares for employee incentive purposes. Up to the beginning of the 2007 �nancial year no options were allocated to employees. However, on 30 
January 2007, 7 650 000 options were o�ered to and accepted by employees at a strike price of 4.5 cents per share. According to the stipulations of IFRS 2 (Share-based payments), 
the option scheme is equity settled as the employee is entitled to purchase ordinary shares of the Company once the vesting conditions have been satis�ed. On 1 November 2007, 
an additional 2 000 000 options were o�ered to and accepted by an employee at a strike price of 4.5 cents per share under the same conditions. On 02 May 2011, 6 105 000 were 
o�ered to and accepted by sta� at a strike price of 22.5 cents per share. On 01 January 2014, an additional 1 015 000 were issued at a strike price of 27 cents per share. Moreover, 
options amounting to 100 000 (01 October 2014) and 250 000 (01 October 2015, with an additional 250 000 on 01 October 2016) were issued at strike prices of 58.5 cents, 64.8 
cents and 67.5 cents respectively. These options were granted under the same conditions as previous grants.
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VESTING CONDITIONS
Provided the employee is still in the employ of the Company at the speci�ed date, the options vest in the following tranches:

 - On or after the second anniversary but before the third anniversary of the grant date: 25%

 - On or after the third anniversary but before the fourth anniversary of the grant date: 50%

 - On or after the fourth anniversary but before the �fth anniversary of the grant date: 75%

 - Lastly on or between the �fth and the tenth anniversaries of the grant date: All the remaining options

Number of Options
2017

Number of Options
2016

Outstanding on 01 October  3,520,000  3,520,000 
Granted during the period  250,000  250,000 
Forfeited during the period  (452,500)  (250,000)

Outstanding on 30 September  3,317,500  3,520,000 

Exercisable on 30 September  2,210,000  2,762,500 

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

The share price of Namibia Asset Management Limited shares at 30 September 2017 was 72 cents per share (2016: 75 cents per share).

The options issued on 02 May 2011 and outstanding on 30 September 2016 have have now fully vested. The options issued on 01 January 2015 and outstanding on 30 September 
2017 had a remaining contractual term of 2 years and 3 months. The options issued on 01 October 2014 , 01 October 2015 and 01 October 2016 had remaining contractual terms of 
3 years, 4 years and 5 years, respectively. The 452 500 options forfeited during the current period pertained to the 02 May 2011 allocations and these forfeited options have been 
reallocated to bene�ciaries subsequent to the year end.

Independent advisors – University of Cape Town’s Accounting Department – were contracted to calculate the fair value of the share options. The fair value was calculated based 
on the following:

- Listed share price at grant date:  The applicable share price on the date of the grant was used, adjusted for any anomalies.
- Exercise price:  The �rst and second grants were at 4.5 cents per share, third grant was at 22.5 cents per share, fourth grant was at 27 cents per share, 

�fth grant was at at 58.5 cents per share and the sixth and seventh grants were at 64.8 cents and 67.5 cents per share, respectively.
- Expected volatility:  The expected option lifetime of all tranches was considered and volatility was calculated using the historical weekly closing share price 

as of inception.
- Option life: The expected option life was calculated using the tranches stipulated in the trust deed and rounded o� to the nearest year.
- Expected dividend yield: 5.5% under �rst and second grants, 8% under third grant, and 15% for the fourth, �fth, sixth and seventh grants.
- Risk-free interest rate: The yield on a Namibian government bond with a term of maturity equal to the appropriate expected lifetime of the option was used.
- Assumptions for early exercise:  The assumption for exercise behaviours was based on internal investigations and data provided by University of Cape Town’s 

Accounting Department.

The Binomial Model was used and the options on the �rst and second grants were valued at between N$ 0.16 and N$ 0.19 per option. The third grant was valued at N$ 0.061 per 
option at year end and the fourth, �fth, sixth and seventh grant were valued at 89.98 cents per share.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

14. OPERATING EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
14.3 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
14.3.2 THE ORBAN STREET TRUST

On 01 April 2016, the Orban Street Trust – the vehicle used to incentivise NAM employees – reached an agreement with Coronation Investment Management (Pty) Ltd (“CIM”) to 
acquire sixteen million of its shares in NAM for N$8 400 000. These shares were acquired at a discount of 25% to the ruling market price at the time of the commencement of the 
deal discussions and these shares, once acquired, were allocated as follows:
1) E. Emvula 5 600 000; and
2) U. Eiseb 5 200 000.

The allocations will vest once the following conditions are met:
1) At least 5 years have passed since the e�ective date;
2) The bene�ciary is still an employee of NAM; and
3) All the loan amounts and the related interest has been repaid.

These allocations are deemed to fall within the ambit of IFRS 2 as NAM receives the services from the bene�ciaries in return for the shares. As a result hereof, NAM approached 
an independent valuator (University of Cape Town’s Accounting Department) to determine the fair value of the transaction. The following were the key considerations taken into 
account to determine the fair value of the transaction:

 - Nature of transaction:  Based on the terms of the transaction, it was deemed that this is a forward sale instead of an option.
 - Exercise price: The transaction price was �xed at 52.5 cents per share on the e�ective date.
 - Term: A minimum period of 5 years since e�ective date.
 - Discount: 25% on a market price of 70 cents.
 - Dividend yield: 14% on the discounted price, 10% on the market price.
 - Risk-free interest rate: 8% compounded semi-annually.

Using the aforementioned assumptions, the fair value of the transaction was determined to be 18.89 cents per share as at the e�ective date. 
The total share-based transaction recorded in respect of the abovementioned schemes are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

Equity-settled share option transactions
Expense recognised in pro�t or loss  666,162  613,554  666,162  613,554 
Related deferred tax charge -  (196,338) -  (196,338) 

Charge to equity 666,162  417,216 666,162  417,216 

Share-based payments reserve

Opening balance  1,852,370  1,435,154  1,852,370  1,435,154 
Charge to equity 666,162  417,216 666,162  417,216 

Closing balance 2,518,532  1,852,370 2,518,532  1,852,370 
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14.4. INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

Opening balance  8,756,022  -    -    -   
-Additions  -  8,400,000  -    -   
-Interest  617,076  356,022  -    -   
-Repayments  (2,054,683)  -    -    -   

Closing Balance  7,318,415  8,756,022  -    -   

The interest-bearing liabilities pertain to the acquisition of shares from CIM by OST (refer to 14.3.2). The loan is repayable with any dividends that accrue on the 16 000 000 shares acquired 
as well as 30% of the dividends that accrue on the pre-existing 26 000 800 shares. The repayment is �rst applied to any accrued interest and thereafter to the capital balance. The loan 
attracts interest at the prime rate of Nedbank South Africa less 200 basis points. The 16 000 000 shares are held as security against the loan amount until the loan and attributable interest 
are fully settled.

GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

15. FINANCE INCOME

Gain on �nancial assets held at fair value through pro�t 
or loss

 381,907  412,746  84,215  206,464 

Interest on call and current accounts  1,280,394  1,013,737  390,911  215,116 
Interest on unit trust investments  527,104  494,925  527,104  494,925 
Dividends received  -    -    5,000,000  4,700,000 

 2,189,405  1,921,408  6,002,230  5,616,505 

16. FINANCE COST

Interest accrued on interest-bearing liabilities (refer to 
note 14.4)

 (617,076)  (356,022)  -    -   

 (617,076)  (356,022)  -  -   

17. INCOME TAX

Income tax recognised in pro�t or loss

Namibian normal tax     
Current year  7,316,336  7,788,784  5,370,157  5,347,544 

Deferred tax  (211,331)  (78,001)  (183,966)  (300,758) 
Current year  (211,331)  118,336  (183,966)  (104,421) 
Charge to equity  -  (196,337)  -  (196,337) 

 7,105,005  7,710,783  5,186,191  5,046,786 

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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GROUP COMPANY

17. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$
The Namibian corporate tax rate was 32% during the 
current �nancial year. 

Reconciliation of tax rate % % % %

Standard corporate tax rate  32.0 32,0  32.0  32.0 
Adjusted for:
Disallowable expenditure  0.2  0.9 (0.4)  0.4 
Exempt income – Dividends and unrealised gains (0.0)  (0.0)  (7.3)  (7.7) 

E�ective tax rate  32.2  32.9 24.3 24.7

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE N$ N$ N$ N$

Earnings per share are based on basic earnings of:  14,948,210  15,761,821  16,181,586  15,405,324 

Headline earnings per share are based on headline 
earnings of:  14,948,210  15,758,021  16,181,586  15,401,524 

Reconciliation of earnings to headline earnings

Pro�t for the year  14,948,210  15,761,821  16,181,586  15,405,324 
Pro�t on sale of equipment  -  (3,800)  -  (3,800) 

Headline earnings  14,948,210  15,758,021  16,181,586  15,401,524 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Ordinary shares in issue  154,229,200  154,229,200  200,000,000  200,000,000 

Diluted ordinary shares in issue*  160,024,007  160,563,809  200,000,000  200,000,000 

Reconciliation of statutory shares in issue to diluted 
ordinary shares in issue

Statutory issued shares  200,000,000  200,000,000  200,000,000  200,000,000 
E�ect of own shares held (NAM Sta� Share Scheme)  (3,770,000)  (3,770,000)  -   -
E�ect of own shares held (Orban Street Trust)  (42,000,800)  (42,000,800)  -    - 
E�ect of share options outstanding  5,794,807  6,334,609  -    - 
Diluted ordinary shares in issue  160,024,007  160,563,809  200,000,000  200,000,000 

 - Basic  9.69  10.22  8.09  7.70 
 - Headline  9.69  10.22  8.09  7.70 
 - Diluted  9.34  9.81  8.09  7.70 
*  Dilution of ordinary shares takes place if all employees exercise their options.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

19. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS GROUP COMPANY

19.1 CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS 2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

Pro�t before tax  22,053,215  23,472,604  21,367,777  20,452,110 
Adjustments for:

Finance costs  617,076  356,022  -    - 
Finance income  (1,807,498)  (1,508,662)  (5,918,015)  (5,410,041) 

Non-cash items
Depreciation  258,626  132,743  258,626  132,743 
Amortisation of intangibles  4,386  13,275  4,386  13,275 
Share-based payments  666,162  613,554  666,162  613,554 
Gains on �nancial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss  (381,907)  (412,746)  (84,215)  (206,464) 
Pro�t on sale of equipment  -  (3,800)  -    (3,800) 

Operating pro�t before working capital changes  21,410,060  22,662,990  16,294,721  15,591,377 

Working capital changes  (381,823)  (14,097,357)  (1,712,467)  (12,093,427) 

Movement in trade and other receivables  187,707  800,314  167,299  (391,600) 
Movement in trade and other payables  (569,530)  (14,897,671)  (1,879,766)  (11,701,827) 

Cash generated by operations  21,028,237  8,565,633  14,582,254  3,497,950 
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GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
19.  NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(CONTINUED) N$ N$ N$ N$

19.2 INCOME TAXES PAID

Balance at beginning of the year  746,921  236,120  367,935  322,814 
Current tax charge  (7,316,337)  (7,788,785)  (5,370,157)  (5,347,544) 
Balance at end of year  (486,933)  (746,921)  (257,470)  (367,935) 

Income tax paid  (7,056,349)  (8,299,586)  (5,259,692)  (5,392,665) 

19.3 DIVIDENDS PAID

Shareholders for dividends – opening balance  (368,192)  (305,447)  (368,192)  (326,898) 
Shareholders for dividends – closing balance  117,341  368,192  117,341  368,192 
Dividends declared  (14,625,430)  (14,900,549)  (15,000,000)  (15,000,000) 

Dividends paid  (14,876,281)  (14,837,804)  (15,250,851)  (14,958,706) 

19.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Favourable balances  21,672,585  21,539,828  15,531,393  15,381,641 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  21,672,585  21,539,828  15,531,393  15,381,641 

Analysed as follows:

Bank balances  826,207  1,335,590  274,104  1,000,365 
NAM Coronation Strategic Income Fund  20,846,378  20,204,238  15,257,289  14,381,276 

 21,672,585  21,539,828  15,531,393  15,381,641 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of 
financial instruments:
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
• Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure 
to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s 
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are 
included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

Risk Management Framework

�e Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the es-
tablishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. �e Board is responsible for developing and mo-
nitoring the Group’s risk management policies through the 
establishment of its Group Audit and Risk Committee.

�e Group’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set ap propriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
re�ect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. 
�e Group, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligations.

�e Group Audit and Risk Committee oversees how management 
monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies 

and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. Management 
presents quarterly risk logs to the Audit and Risk committee and 
the Board, indicating �nancial losses incurred due to risk incidents 
and actions taken to prevent similar events in the future.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer 
or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s 
receivables from customers, investment securities and cash 
and cash equivalents.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s customer base consists of two main categories: 
segregated funds and unit trust funds. These two categories 
of clients have significantly different profiles of credit risk.

Segregated funds

73.6% of Namibia Asset Management Limited’s Group revenue 
(excluding performance fees) is generated by segregated funds 
(2015: 72.8%). These consist of pension funds, medical aid funds 
and insurance companies, all of whom are large institutional 
investors who are strictly regulated by NAMFISA. In 58.8% of 
instances, management fees are collected automatically from 
funds invested and virtually no credit risk exists.

In the case where clients are presented with a monthly or 
quarterly invoice which is paid by the client independently 
of funds under management, payment periods are strictly 
measured and delays in payment are immediately followed 
up at the highest level of management.

The majority of the Group’s revenue is attributable to invest-
ment mandates of single customers.

All of the Group’s segregated fund customers have been trans-
acting with the Group for over four years, and losses due to 
payment default by segregated clients have never occurred 
during this time.

Unit Trust funds

Unit trust fund clients bear no credit  risk as the fees are auto-
matically collected when the units are purchased or sold.

Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing 
its funds in liquid securities with local banks of satisfactory 
credit status and its unit trust funds. Management does not 
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Guarantees

The Group does not provide financial guarantees to any exter-
nal parties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to 
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s 
reputation.
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The Group actively monitors its cash flow requirements on a daily 
basis and thereby optimises its return on investments. Typically, 
the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet 
expected operational expenses for the period of 30 days, including 
the servicing of financial obligations (if any); this excludes the 
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably 
be predicted, such as natural disasters. The Group does not main-
tain any credit facilities, apart from normal 30-day creditor’s pay-
ment terms with general business suppliers. The loan held by 
The Orban Street Trust is only repayable from dividends paid on 
the underlying shares purchased and, as a result, does not have 
any liquidity impact on the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as 
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices that will 
affect the Group’s income or the value of its holding of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

The Group does not trade in derivatives.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to  to currency risk.

Interest-rate risk

Except for the Orban Street Trust loan, the Group does not 
have any interest-bearing borrowings and therefore does not 
carry any interest-rate risk on liabilities. The exposure of the 
Orban Street Trust loan to interest-rate risk does not have an 
impact on the day-to-day operations of the entity as the loan 
is repayable by a specific dividend income stream and any 
changes in the interest rate will only reduce or prolong the 
repayment period of the loan.

Interest-bearing financial assets are monitored on a daily basis 
and active management takes place to ensure maximum rates.

Other market price risk

The Group does not directly hold any listed shares as investment 
vehicles. The Group is exposed to equity price risk, which arises 
from available-for-sale equity instruments as well as investments 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Management mo-
nitors the exposure to these instruments by reference to the 
market indices.

The investments at fair value through profit or loss are treated 
as such because their performance is actively monitored and 
they are managed on a fair value basis.

Equity price risk is one of the Group’s main operating risks and the 
Board considers it to be managed adequately and with great care.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. 
The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which 
the Group defines as total shareholders’ equity, and the level of 
dividends to ordinary shareholders on a regular basis.

Currently, the Group does not have any intensive capital re-
quirements and therefore, no external interest-bearing debt is 
considered. Dividends are paid out after cash flows have been 
rigorously tested and the Board is certain that all short- and 
medium-term commitments can be met.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital ma-
nagement during the year. The regulator imposes capital re-
quirements on the unit trust funds under management as well 
as the Company and its subsidiary. Management is satisfied that 
the Group adheres to those requirements.

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

“ As an active manager, 

we have the skill and 

experience to make bold 

and decisive decisions”
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CREDIT RISK

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of �nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was:

GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

Institutional client receivables  9,504,563  9,713,545  9,504,563  9,713,545 
Retail client receivables  1,744,549  1,714,427  -    - 
Other receivables  584,116  605,377  397,074  367,805 

 11,833,228  12,033,349  9,901,637  10,081,350 

The Group's most signi�cant client, the Government Institutions Pension Fund, accounts for N$ 7 581 860 (2016: N$7 779 981) of the trade-receivables carrying amount at 30 September 2017.

Impairment losses
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Based on past experience, the Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade-receivables not past due; 100% of the balance, which includes the amount owed by 
the Group’s most signi�cant customer (see above), relates to customers that have a good track record of more than 5 years with the Group. There are no higher-risk receivables.

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

2017
N$

GROSS

2016
N$

GROSS

2017
N$

IMPAIRMENT

2016
N$

IMPAIRMENT

2017
N$

GROSS

2016
N$

GROSS

2017
N$

IMPAIRMENT

2016
N$

IMPAIRMENT

Neither past due nor 
impaired

 11,249,112  11,427,972  -    -    9,504,563  9,713,545  -    -   

Past due 1 – 30 days  -    -   -    -    -    -    -    -   
Past due 31 – 120 days  -    -   -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  11,249,112  11,427,972  -    -    9,504,563  9,713,545  -    -   

N O T E S  T O  T H E  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
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GROUP
30 SEPTEMBER 2017

N$
Carrying Amount 6 Mths or Less More than 12 Mths 

Non-derivative �nancial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities  7,318,415  -    7,318,415 

Shareholders for dividends  117,341  117,341  -   
Trade and other payables  10,282,924  10,282,924  -   

 17,718,680  10,400,265  7,318,415 

GROUP
30 SEPTEMBER 2016

N$
Carrying Amount 6 Mths or Less More than 12 Mths 

Non-derivative �nancial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities  8,756,022  -    8,756,022 

Shareholders for dividends  368,192  368,192  -   
Trade and other payables  9,833,778  9,833,778  -   

 18,957,992  10,201,970  8,756,022 

COMPANY
30 SEPTEMBER 2017

N$
Carrying Amount 6 Mths or Less More than 12 Mths 

Non-derivative �nancial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities  117,341  117,341  -   

Shareholders for dividends  1,944,109  1,944,109  -   
Trade and other payables 6,940,712 6,940,712  -   

9,002,162 9,002,162  -   

COMPANY
30 SEPTEMBER 2016

N$
Carrying Amount 6 Mths or Less More than 12 Mths 

Non-derivative �nancial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities  368,192  368,192  -   

Shareholders for dividends  1,432,251  1,432,251  -   
Trade and other payables  7,533,394  7,533,394  -   

 9,333,837  9,333,837  -   

NOTES TO THE  
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
LIQUIDITY RISK

The following are the contractual maturities of �nancial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7

6 6   /   A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S



Pro�t or Loss Equity
100bp 100bp 100bp 100bp
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Group: 30 September 2017
Variable rate instruments 222,897 (222,897) 147,112 (127,112)

Group: 30 September 2016
Variable rate instruments  215,398  (215,398)  142,163  (142,163)

Company: 30 September 2017
Variable rate instruments  155,314  (155,314)  102,507  (102,507)

Company: 30 September 2016
Variable rate instruments  153,816  (153,816)  101,519  (101,519)

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTEREST RATE RISK

A change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at reporting date would have increased/ (decreased) equity and pro�t and loss by the amounts shown below. The change in the interest rate is 
applied across all �nancial instruments impacted by interest rates in addition to assuming that all other variables remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2016.

FAIR VALUES

Fair values versus carrying amounts
Management is of the view that the carrying value of �nancial instruments approximates fair value.
Basis for determining fair values
The following summarises the signi�cant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of �nancial instruments re�ected on the face of the statement of �nancial position.
Trade and other receivables or payables
For receivables or payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the carrying value is deemed to re�ect the fair value. All other receivables or payables are discounted to determine fair value.
Statutory investments
For statutory investments in the unit trusts, fair values are determined at the ruling unit price as at year end.  Refer to note 5.
Other investments
Short-term investments consist of unit trust investments. The fair value of these investments is based on the actual unit price at year end.
Cash and cash equivalents
Considering cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid assets of short-term nature, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents is considered to be the values as shown on the relevant bank 
statements and other supporting documentation.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

N$'000
30 September 2017 Level 1 Total

Available-for-sale �nancial assets  5,000,000  5,000,000 
Financial assets designated at fair value through pro�t or loss  3,663,339  3,663,339 

 8,663,339  8,663,339 

N$'000
30 September 2016 Level 1 Total

Available-for-sale �nancial assets  5,000,000  5,000,000 
Financial assets designated at fair value through pro�t or loss  4,532,909  4,532,909 

 9,532,909  9,532,909 

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The table below analyses �nancial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The di�erent levels have been de�ned as follows:

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

During the �nancial year ended 30 September 2017 there were no transfers of �nancial assets between the levels.
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following tables analyse the Group’s �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities in accordance with the categories of �nancial instruments in IAS 39.
Assets and liabilities outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown separately.

GROUP
30 September 2017
N$

Fair Value through
Pro�t or Loss

N$

Available for
Sale

N$

Loans and
Receivables

N$

Other Financial
Liabilities

N$

Non-Financial
Assets/Liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    905,970  905,970 

Intangible assets  -    -    -    -    6,241  6,241 

Marketable securities  3,663,339  5,000,000  -    -    -    8,663,339 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1,921,319  1,921,319 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    11,932,504  -    39,030  11,971,534 

Current tax assets  -    -    -    -    486,933  486,933 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    21,672,585  -    -    21,672,585 

Total assets  3,663,339  5,000,000  33,605,089  -    3,359,493  45,627,921 

LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing liabilities  -    -    7,318,415  -    -    7,318,415 

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    -    117,341  -    117,341 

Trade and other payables  -    -    -    10,282,924  3,527,095  13,810,019 

Total liabilities  -    -    7,318,415  10,400,265  3,527,095  21,245,775 

Equity  24,382,146 

Total equity and liabilities  45,627,921 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables analyse the Group’s �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities in accordance with the categories of �nancial instruments in IAS 39.
Assets and liabilities outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown separately.

GROUP
30 September 2016
N$

Fair Value through
Pro�t or Loss

N$

Available for
Sale

N$

Loans and
Receivables

N$

Other Financial
Liabilities

N$

Non-Financial
Assets/Liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    1,002,989  1,002,989 

Intangible assets  -    -    -    -    10,628  10,628 

Marketable securities  4,532,909  5,000,000  -    -    -    9,532,909 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1,709,988  1,709,988 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    12,120,209  -    39,030  12,159,239 

Current tax assets  -    -    -    -    746,921  746,921 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    21,539,828  -    -    21,539,828 

Total assets  4,532,909  5,000,000  33,660,037  -    3,509,556  46,702,502 

LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing liabilities  -    -    -    8,756,022  -    8,756,022 

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    -    368,192  -    368,192 

Trade and other payables  -    -    -    9,833,778  4,545,771  14,379,549 

Total liabilities  -    -    -    18,957,992  4,545,771  23,503,763 

Equity  23,198,739 

Total equity and liabilities  46,702,502 

There were no reclassi�cations during the year.
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables analyse the Group’s �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities in accordance with the categories of �nancial instruments in IAS 39.
Assets and liabilities outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown separately.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

COMPANY
30 September 2017
N$

Fair Value through
Pro�t or Loss

N$

Available for
Sale

N$

Loans and
Receivables

N$

Other Financial
Liabilities

N$

Non-Financial
Assets/Liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    905,970  905,970 

Intangible asset  -    -    -    -    6,241  6,241 

Investment in subsidiary  -    -    -    -    6,000,000  6,000,000 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1,813,879  1,813,879 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    9,901,637  -    122,281  10,023,918 

Amounts owing by Group companies  -    -    1,205,643  -    -    1,205,643 

Current tax asset  -    -    -    -    257,470  257,470 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    15,531,393  -    -    15,531,393 

Total assets  -    -    26,638,673  -    9,105,841  35,744,514 

LIABILITIES

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    -    117,341  -    117,341 

Trade and other payables  -    -    -    6,940,712  2,870,525  9,811,237 

Amounts owing to Group companies  -    -    -    1,944,109  -    1,944,109 

Total liabilities  -    -    -    9,002,162  2,870,525  11,872,687 

Total equity and liabilities  35,744,514 
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COMPANY
30 September 2016
N$

Fair Value through
Pro�t or Loss

N$

Available for
Sale

N$

Loans and
Receivables

N$

Other Financial
Liabilities

N$

Non-Financial
Assets/Liabilities 

N$
Total

N$

ASSETS

Equipment  -    -    -    -    1,002,989  1,002,989 

Intangible assets  -    -    -    -    10,628  10,628 

Interest in subsidiary  -    -    -    -    6,000,000  6,000,000 

Deferred tax  -    -    -    -    1,629,913  1,629,913 

Trade and other receivables  -    -    10,081,350  -    109,865  10,191,215 

Amounts owing by Group companies  -    -    931,204  -    -    931,204 

Current tax asset  -    -    -    -    367,935  367,935 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    15,381,641  -    -    15,381,641 

Total assets  -    -    26,394,195  -    9,121,330  35,515,525 

LIABILITIES

Shareholders for dividends  -    -    -    368,192  -    368,192 

Trade and other payables  -    -    -    7,533,394  4,157,609  11,691,003 

Amounts owing to Group companies  -    -    -    1,432,251  -    1,432,251 

Total liabilities  -    -    -    9,333,837  4,157,609  13,491,446 

Equity  22,024,079 

Total equity and liabilities  35,515,525 

There were no reclassi�cations during the year.

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables analyse the Group’s �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities in accordance with the categories of �nancial instruments in IAS 39.
Assets and liabilities outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown separately.
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NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
Country of

incorporation
Ownership interest 

2017 2016

% %

Namibia Unit Trust Managers Ltd Namibia 100,00 100,00

The subsidiary has 6 000 000 issued shares (2016: 6 000 000)

Through directing of all the decision making by the Company Board of directors and receiving 
all the bene�ts, the Group also exercises control over the following entities:

The NAM Sta� Share Scheme Namibia 100,00 100,00
The Orban Street Trust Namibia 100,00 100,00

21. RELATED PARTIES
21.1 IDENTITY OF RELATED PARTIES
Related party relationships exist between the Company, its subsidiary (see note 4), shareholders, directors and other entities controlled by the Group. Additionally, Coronation Fund Managers Ltd 
(“CFM”), through one of its subsidiaries, Coronation Investment Management (Pty) Ltd holds 40.05% (2016: 40.05%) of the Company’s issued share capital.

21.2 GROUP ENTITIES
Details of investments in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 4.
Subsidiary is:

21.3 SHAREHOLDERS
The outstanding balances due to shareholders in respect of dividends are shown on the face of the statement of �nancial position. The analysis of shareholders is provided on page 18. 

21.4 DIRECTORS
The names and details of directors are disclosed on page 12 of this document. Loans to/from directors as at 30 September 2017 amounted to Nil (2016: Nil).

21.5 TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Details relating to directors’ emoluments and shareholdings in the company are disclosed in note 14.2 and 14.3 and the analysis of shareholders on page 18. The Group does provide other non-
cash bene�ts to executive directors and executive o�cers in addition to their salaries in the form of share options. Key management personnel in the Group consist of E Emvula (Chief Executive 
O�cer), U Eiseb (Chief Financial O�cer) and T Mbuende* (Retail Business).

The key management personnel compensations for these members are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$

Short-term employee bene�ts
Salaries and wages  1,464,790  1,501,793  1,419,142  1,456,145 

Bonuses  2,070,000  1,785,000  2,070,000  1,785,000 
Contributions to retirement funds  109,794  111,855  106,436  108,497 
Medical aid contributions  37,133  35,517  32,322  30,706 
Share-based payments  444,166  417,216  444,166  417,216 
Long-term incentives and other  399,994  399,994  371,799  371,799 

 4,525,877  4,251,375  4,443,865  4,169,363 

Restraint of trade payments  -  785,250  -    785,250 

The above amounts are included in 'short term employee bene�ts' in note 14.1. *T Mbuende was only appointed on 01 June 2017.
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21. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Coronation Fund Managers Limited
By virtue of an arms-length and market-related agreement, CFM provide asset management services to the Group. In addition, employees may be located at the Coronation o�ce in Cape Town 
from time to time to carry out their duties. The Group pays for normal o�ce costs relating to such employees who may be located at Coronation on a monthly and quarterly basis.

Group investments in unit trusts
Group companies that invest excess cash in the Unit Trust Funds managed by Namibia Unit Trust Managers Ltd, do not pay any service fees or initial fees on those investments.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP COMPANY

2017 2016 2017 2016
N$ N$ N$ N$

Fees paid to Coronation Fund Managers Limited  32,466,667  33,894,318  24,858,846  25,003,315 
Information Technology service fees  735,994  723,103  735,994  723,103 

 33,202,661  34,617,421  25,594,840  25,726,418 

Operating lease commitments are payable as follows:

Less than one year 747,435 685,720 560,577 514,290
Between one and �ve years 2,583,416 3,330,851 1,937,562 2,498,138

3,330,851 4,016,571 2,498,139 3,012,428

The lease does not include any contingent rentals. There are no contractual cash �ows beyond 5 years.
During the year, an amount of N$858,315 (2016: N$731,947) was recognised as an expense in the statements of comprehensive income in respect of operating leases.

The property occupied by the Group is leased under an operating lease arrangement. The period of the lease is 5 years and was entered into in September 2016. The contract has an escalation 
clause of 9% per annum. There is no option to purchase attached to the contract and the group has the �rst option of renewing the lease agreement.

22. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Other entities controlled by the Group
Shares held at 30 

September
Group (Dividends 

received)
2017 2016 2017 2016

N$ N$ N$ N$

The Orban Street Trust  42,000,800  42,000,800  3,150,060 1,950,060
The NAM Sta� Share Scheme  3,770,000  3,770,000  282,750  282,750 

 45,770,800  45,770,800  3,432,810 2,232,810

The dividends received on the NAM Sta� Share Scheme accrues for the bene�t of the underlying share option holders. The trustees of the Orban Street Trust would at their discretion, after 
having taken advice from the remuneration committee distribute any remaining dividends received, after having taken into account the interest and loan repayments (refer to note 14.3) as well 
as the running expenses of the trust to the bene�ciaries. The trust deed stipulates that the bene�ciaries of the trust are all current employees of the Company.
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24.  STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet e�ective for the year ended 30 September 2017 and have not been applied in preparing the Company’s 
�nancial statements.

The following statements are not yet e�ective and management has included an update on the impact of the adoption of these statements on the �nancial results or position of the Company.

23. NEW AND AMENDED IFRS AND IFRIC INTERPRETATIONS ADOPTED
None of the new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that were adopted had a material e�ect on the �nancial performance and position of the Group and Company, however additional 
disclosures were made as required.

New/Revised International Financial Reporting Standards
Group e�ective date
Annual periods 
commencing on or after

IAS 7 (amended) Disclosure initiative 
The amendments to IAS 7 require additional disclosures that enable users of �nancial statements to 
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from �nancing activities.

These amendments are applicable prospectively and will have no impact on the Group but introduce 
additional disclosures.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2017

IAS 12 (amended) Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
The amendments clarify that unrealised losses on debt instruments that are measured at fair value for 
accounting purposes but at cost for tax purposes, can give rise to deductible temporary amount of the 
asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable pro�ts.  
These amendments are to be applied retrospectively in the 2018 �nancial year.
The Group is in the process of assessing the impact on the Group; however, due to the nature of Namibian 
tax laws and our business, we do not expect the standard to have a signi�cant impact.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2017

IFRS 2 As a result of work by the IFRS Interpretations Committee, several amendments have been made to IFRS 
2 to clarify how to account for certain share-based payment transactions. The amendments to IFRS 2 are 
related to the following areas:

• Accounting for the e�ects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of the liability 
for cash settled share-based payment transactions.

• The classi�cation of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features for withholding 
tax obligations.

• Accounting for a modi�cation to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the 
transaction from cash settled to equity settled.

• The Group does not expect these amendments to have a material impact on the schemes currently in 
place.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2018
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 incorporates amendments to the classi�cation and measurement guidance as well as accounting 
requirements for impairment of �nancial assets measured at amortised cost and the general hedge 
accounting model. The signi�cant amendments are:

The classi�cation and measurement of �nancial assets under IFRS 9 is based on both the business 
model and the rationale for holding the instruments as well as the contractual characteristics of the 
instruments. Impairments in terms of IFRS 9 will be determined based on an expected loss model that 
considers the signi�cant changes to the asset’s credit risk and the expected loss that will arise in the 
event of default. The classi�cation and measurement of �nancial liabilities is e�ectively the same as 
under IAS 39 i.e. IFRS 9 allows �nancial liabilities not held for trading to be measured at either amortised 
cost or fair value. However, if fair value is elected then changes in the fair value as a result of changes in 
own credit risk should be recognised in other comprehensive income.

Based on our assessment of the changes which will be required and the current classi�cation of �nancial 
instruments which will be impacted we do not foresee these changes to have a signi�cant impact on the 
results of the Group.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue

IFRS 15 provides a single, principle-based model to be applied to all contracts with customers. The 
new standard requires companies to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to 
customers that re�ects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange 
for those goods or services. The new standard will also provide guidance for transactions that were not 
previously addressed comprehensively and improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements. The 
standard also introduces enhanced disclosures about revenue. 

We do not expect the standard to have a material impact, except for additional disclosure on the Group 
revenue. Revenue is earned on a pre-agreed percentage of assets under management.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2018

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance lease sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises 
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing 
its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases 
of low value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard – i.e. lessors continue to 
classify leases as �nance or operating leases.

The Group has started an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated �nancial 
statements. So far, the most signi�cant impact identi�ed is that the Group will recognise new assets and 
liabilities for its operating leases of o�ce premises. In addition, the nature of expenses related to those 
leases will now change as IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line operating lease expense with a depreciation 
charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities. The Group does not have any 
�nance leases.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2019

Annual 
Improvements

Improvements to IFRS

The IASB issued the Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle. The annual improvements project includes 
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 12 and IAS 28. The annual improvement project’s aim is to clarify and 
improve accounting standards. 

The amendments have been assessed and are not expected to have a signi�cant impact on the Group.

Annual periods commencing 
on or after 1 January 2018
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE  
20TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Notice is hereby given that the twentieth Annual General Mee-
ting of Namibia Asset Management Limited will be held at 
the Company’s offices at Unit no 18, Tenbergen Village, Cnr of 
Robert Mugabe Avenue and Lazarett Street, Windhoek, on 23 
February 2018 for the following purpose:

AGENDA
PRESENTATION OF THE AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited annual financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 30 September 2017, together with the reports 
by the directors, the external auditors and the audit and risk 
committee have been approved by the Board of directors of the 
Company (“the Board”) on 18 December 2017, and are available 
on the Company’s website www.namasset.com.na.
 
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1

To approve the Company’s remuneration to non-executive 
directors for their services as directors in respect of the 2018 
financial year:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2

To appoint, as recommended by the Audit and Risk Committee, 
KPMG as the Company’s registered auditors and to authorize 
directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
a. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mr Schalk Walters, 

who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions 
of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible 
and available for re-election.

b. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Birgit Rossouw, 
who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions 
of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible 
and available for re-election.

c. To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Elize Angula, 
who retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions 
of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible 
and available for re-election.

A profile in respect of each director is set out on page 12. The 
re-election of the directors of the Board will be conducted by 
way of a separate vote in respect of each individual.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4

To elect the Audit and Risk Committee members as recom-
mended by the NAMCODE. The following individuals are re-
commended for election to the Audit and Risk Committee:
a. Mr Schalk Walters (Chairman)
b. Mrs Birgit Rossouw
c. Mrs Aimee Rhoda

A profile in respect of each member recommended for election 
to the Audit and Risk Committee is contained on page 12.

PROPOSED FEE
2018 FY

N$

PRIOR YEAR
2017 FY

N$
NAM Board
- Chairman* 14,426 13,482
- Member 9,095 8,500

Audit and Risk Committee
- Chairman 12,022 11,235
- Member 9,095 8,500

Remuneration and Nominations
- Chairman 10,224 9,555
- Member 9,095 8,500

Annual retainer fee 54,820 51,230
*the incumbent Chairman does not receive any remuneration due to his role at Coronation. I N T E G R A T E D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTE

Non-binding advisory vote to endorse the Company’s remuneration 
policy. The remuneration policy is contained on page 23.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1 – AMENDMENT OF THE 
COMPANY’S ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 67(1) of the 
Companies Act, Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company be and is hereby altered by the deletion of the word 
“twelve” in the fourth line of the Article in substitution thereof of 
the word “three”, such that the clause reads as follows:

  “116. All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise 
made use of by the directors for the benefit of the Company 
until claimed, provided that dividends unclaimed after 
a period of three years may be declared forfeited by the 
directors and assigned for the benefit of the Company.” 

The reason for passing Special Resolution 1 is to approve the 
alteration of Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company in order to align with the 3-year best practice threshold. 
The effect of Special Resolution 1 will be that the Company be 
authorised to alter Article 116 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company. 

TO TRANSACT ANY OTHER BUSINESS

To transact such other business as may be transacted at an 
annual general meeting or raised by shareholders with or with-
out advance notice to the Company.

VOTING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may ap-
point one or more proxies to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote 
in their stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

For the convenience of members who are unable to attend the 
meeting but wish to be represented thereat, the enclosed proxy 
form is provided. Such members should kindly complete and 
return the form to the Transfer Secretaries.
 
Transfer Secretaries (Pty) Ltd 
4 Robert Mugabe Avenue, Windhoek
or post it to PO Box 2401, Windhoek, Namibia

To be effective, the completed proxy form must reach the Trans-
fer Secretaries in Windhoek at least 48 hours before the time 
appointed for the meeting.

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE  
20TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

“ A relentless commitment to 

the long term is the defining 

characteristic of the Group.”
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DIRECTORS, AUDITORS & SECRETARIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

DIRECTORATE AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

A Pillay - Chairman (2) (A)
RG Young (2) (A)
S Walters (1) (B)
E Angula (1)
B Rossouw (1) (B)
A Rhoda (2) (B)
T Shaanika (1)
E Emvula (1)
U Eiseb (1)
Namibian 1
South African 2
Remuneration and Nominations committee A 
Audit and Risk committee B

AUDITORS

KPMG
30 Schanzen Road, Klein Windhoek 
PO Box 86863
Eros, Windhoek

TRANSFER SECRETARY

Transfer Secretaries (Pty) Ltd 
Namibian Stock Exchange 
4 Robert Mugabe Avenue, Windhoek
PO Box 2401
Windhoek

Telephone + 264 61 227 647
Telefax + 264 61 248 531

COMPANY SECRETARY & REGISTERED OFFICE

U Eiseb

Unit no 18, Tenbergen Village, Cnr of Robert Mugabe Avenue 
and Lazarett Street, Windhoek
PO Box 23329
Windhoek
Telephone + 264 61 275 700
Telefax + 264 61 249 444

Incorporated on 6 November 1997 Registration No 97/397
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PROXY FORM I/ We     (Name/s in block letters) 

being the registered holders of     shares in Namibia Asset Management Limited,

do hereby appoint     of     

or failing him/her     of    

or failing him THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING

as my/our Proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Namibia Asset Management Ltd to be held on 23 February 2018 at 10:00 
at the company’s o�ces at Unit no 18, Tenbergen Village, Cnr of Robert Mugabe Avenue and Lazarett Street, Windhoek, and at any adjournment thereof and to vote for/against the 
resolutions or to abstain from voting in respect of the shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instruction:

I / We desire to vote as follows In favour Against Abstain
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
1.   To approve the Company’s remuneration to non-executive directors for their services as directors in respect of 

2018 �nancial year
2.   To appoint, as recommended by the audit and risk committee, KPMG as the Company’s registered auditors and 

to authorize directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.
3. a)  To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mr Schalk Walters, who retires by rotation in accordance with the 

provisions of the Articles of Association, but is eligible and available for re-election.
 b)  To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Elize Angula, who retires by rotation in accordance with the 

provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible and available for  re-election.
 c)  To re-elect, by way of a separate vote, Mrs Birgit Rossouw, who retires by rotation in accordance with the 

provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, but is eligible and available for re-election.
4.  To elect the Audit and Risk Committee members as recommended by the NAMCODE. The following individuals 

are recommended for election to the Audit and Risk Committee:

 a) Mr Schalk Walters (Chairman)

 b) Mrs Birgit Rossouw

 c) Mrs Aimee Rhoda

5. Non-binding advisory vote to endorse the Company’s remuneration policy.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1 – TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES

To approve the alteration of Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company in order to align with the 3-year 
best practice threshold. The e�ect of Special Resolution 1 will be that the Company be authorised to alter Article 116 
of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Signed at     on this   day of     2017/2018

Full Name       (In block letters) 

Signature/s      

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak, and on a poll, vote in his/her/their stead. 
Such a Proxy need not be a member of the Company.
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T  +264 61 275 700    |    F  +264 61 249 444

UNIT 18, TENBERGEN VILLAGE, CNR. LAZARETT STREET & ROBERT MUGABE AVENUE

PO BOX 23329, WINDHOEK, NAMIBIA

WWW.NAMASSET.COM.NA




